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Guoan International Limited (formerly known as Global Tech
(Holdings) Limited) (the “Company”) (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange stock code: 143 and Singapore Exchange stock code:
G11), together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”),
is principally engaged in the trading of telecommunications
and other products, provision of repair services for
telecommunication products, investment in financial assets and
money lending business.

On 14 December 2015, H{F B %2 4 [ 45 BR 23 7] (CITIC Guoan
Group*) became one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company. CITIC Guoan Group* is a large and wide-ranging
enterprise group in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
Headquartered in Beijing, CITIC Guoan Group*'s scope of
business comprises, inter alia, finance, telecommunications,
tourism, resources development, mining, chemical plant
operation, wine production, real estate, culture, entertainment,
hotel operations, media and healthcare.

The Company intends to leverage on its presence in Hong
Kong and Singapore to expand current businesses horizontally
and vertically, as well as to venture into new industries and
identify new investment opportunities to improve its business
prospects for the long term commercial interest of the
Company and its shareholders. Financial plans will periodically
be revisited to strengthen the Company’s financial position
whilst taking capital market conditions into consideration in
formulating strategies.

*  For identification purpose only
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The reporting period marked various major milestones in the
development of Guoan International Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). Heading into
2018, the Group is ready to further diversify its business
portfolio to unlock new dimensions of growth.

Our corporate and business plans will be discussed in further
detail in the Management Discussion and Analysis section,
but | wish to make the point that at the core of the Group’s
growth strategy, it is our management’'s foresight and
determination to expand our business scope. As we work to
broaden our horizons, we aim to create value and to deliver
steady returns over the long-term economic cycle.

We seek to operate and diversify our business on the premise
of the international experience and exposure of our parent
company, CITIC Guoan Group*, and the Company’s dual
listing status in Hong Kong and Singapore.

Progress has been made in portfolio shaping of our existing
trading business and in further diversification of our business
scope. Notably, the Company has entered into a conditional
agreement to acquire Yicko Securities Limited ("Yicko"),
a well-established brokerage company in Hong Kong. This
acquisition, subject to satisfaction of the conditions and
upon approval by shareholders and completion, will facilitate
the Group’s expansion into brokerage and financial services
business. We believe that the Group will be able to leverage
the respective experiences of CITIC Guoan Group* and Yicko
to create synergies in future.

Overall, the macroeconomic environment is expected to remain
positive. The International Monetary Fund (“IMF") anticipates
that global economic activity will continue to firm up, with
upside growth surprises particularly pronounced in Europe and
Asia, but broad-based. Global growth forecasts for 2018 and
2019 have been revised upward, reflecting increased growth
momentum and the expected impact of the tax policy changes
of the United States.

On the downside, the IMF sees an increased possibility of
a financial market correction, which could dampen growth
and confidence. A possible trigger is a faster-than-expected
increase in advanced economy core inflation and interest rates
as demand accelerates.

*  For identification purpose only
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For China, despite some softening at the end of 2017, her
economy has been keeping pace with growth forecasts.
China’s economy is closely connected with the world. The
Belt and Road Initiative was therefore introduced under the
principle of opening up and integrating herself into the world
economic system. As the initiative promotes the connectivity of
Asia, Europe and Africa, it strengthens the partnerships among
the countries to realise diversified and sustainable development
for all participants.

From Hong Kong's perspective, opportunities emerge not
only from our role in this initiative, but also by taking part
in the Greater Bay Area development scheme that links nine
Mainland cities with Hong Kong and Macau in a bid to form a
regional economic powerhouse.

Looking ahead, we expect global trade and investments to
enter an even more active phase. The year 2018 has seen a
good start for the Group, and we will continue to explore new
opportunities and plan our business prudently. This is only the
beginning of our multi-year effort to strengthen our business
portfolio, and reposition the Group on a more competitive
platform.

Faced with a fast-changing economic landscape, we will
continue to address the challenges while we target consistent
long-term growth. We will stay alert to the multiple headwinds
in the current landscape.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we aim to co-create a
cohesive and caring society with the welfare sector. This has
been the first full year that our new management team is on
board, and | wish to applaud our team’s efforts in leading
the Group’s corporate social responsibility mission. We are
delighted that the Group has been awarded the Caring
Company 2017/18 logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service, which signifies a milestone in our sustainability journey
and the commitment of our entire team. We look forward to
contributing further to a better future.

We are confident of our ongoing development. On behalf of
the board of directors, | wish to thank our management and
staff members, shareholders and business partners for their
unfailing support.
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The Group announced on 2 June 2017 a change in the financial
year end date of the Company from 30 September to 31
December. This change is to align its financial year end date with
that adopted by its substantial shareholder, CITIC Guoan Group*
so as to facilitate the preparation of consolidated financial
statements of the Company and of CITIC Guoan Group*. The
board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) considers that
the change will benefit the overall development of the Group.

As a result of the year end date change, this report presents
the audited annual results of the Company covering a period of
fifteen months from 1 October 2016 to 31 December 2017 (the
"Period”).

The Company is currently a subsidiary of Road Shine
Developments Limited (“Road Shine”) which holds approximately
53.218% of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Road Shine, through Guoan (HK) Holdings Limited, is indirectly
owned by CITIC Guoan Group*, a conglomerate in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), headquartered in Beijing. CITIC
Guoan Group* has an extensive scope of business worldwide in
particular the PRC, spanning from finance, telecommunications,
tourism, resources development, mining, chemical plants
operation, wine production, real estate, culture, entertainment,
hotel operations, media and healthcare.

As the Group's development is being elevated to a new platform,
the Board proposed to change the name of the Company
to better identify it with CITIC Guoan Group*. This was
subsequently approved by the shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 18 August 2017 whereat
the English name of “Guoan International Limited” was officially
adopted by the Company, and the Chinese name of "BIZ B A
PR 2 &]" was adopted as its new dual foreign name.

On 31 March 2017, the Group relocated its head office and
principal place of business to the office premises it acquired. In
order to fully utilise this office property and to generate rental
income for the Group, parts of the unoccupied premises are
being licensed for use by independent third parties. Such licensing
negotiations are ongoing.

During the Period, the Group was principally engaged in the
trading of telecommunications and other products, provision of
repair services for telecommunication products, investments in
financial assets and money lending business.

*  For identification purpose only
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During the Period, the Group recorded a 12.2% period on
period increase in revenue to approximately HK$116.0 million
(year ended 30 September 2016: HK$103.4 million). A gross
profit of approximately HK$30.2 million (year ended 30
September 2016: HK$27.7 million) was recorded.

A net loss of approximately HK$45.9 million (year ended 30
September 2016: loss of HK$25.3 million) was incurred during
the Period, mainly attributable to the increase in amortisation
on office premises and administrative expenses.

Revenue generated from the provision of repair services rose
2.9% period on period to approximately HK$97.4 million
(year ended 30 September 2016: HK$94.7 million), whereas
the trading segment delivered a revenue of HK$18.4 million
(year ended 30 September 2016: HK$8.7 million), up 111.5%
period on period due to the introduction of trading business of
electronic parts.

The Group is exploring other investment or business
development opportunities to build new avenues of revenue
and earnings growth. Leveraging on the strength and exposure
of the Group’s parent company, and based on the platform
of its dual listing in Hong Kong and Singapore, the Group
continually seeks to broaden its business scope globally.

Hong Kong follows a free trade policy and has been ranked
the world’s freest economy by the Heritage Foundation for
24 consecutive years. In response to an improving global
trade environment, Hong Kong demonstrated strong export
performance in 2017 representing the fastest growth in
six years. Against this backdrop, the Hong Kong economy
expanded by 3.9% year on year in real terms in the first three
quarters of 2017, while its merchandise exports increased by
8% year on year.

In November 2017, Hong Kong and the Association of
Southeast Asian Nations (“ASEAN”) signed a free trade
agreement to strengthen the trade flows between Hong Kong
and ASEAN. The Group notes that the agreement, expected
to come into force on 1 January 2019, will expand business
opportunities for Hong Kong enterprises in ASEAN member
states, which are also economies along the Belt and Road. The
closer ties forged will therefore cater for Hong Kong's strategy
to tap the opportunities offered by the Belt and Road Initiative.
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The Group has continually worked to explore ways to expand
its market space in its trading business. During the Period,
the Group broadened the scope of traded products to cover
telecommunications products and electronic parts. This will help
drive new revenue streams for the trading business.

As the Group is better positioned on a solid platform, it has set
out to seek new business developments for the long-term benefit
of shareholders. In preparation for participation in the financial
services business, the Group has held a money lenders licence
since 2016 for conducting related business.

Another diversification initiative is a proposed foray into
brokerage business and other financial services. The Board
announced that, on 13 February 2018, Exquisite Honor
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement for the acquisition
of Yicko Securities Limited (“Yicko"”) for a consideration of
HK$420,000,000, to be satisfied as to HK$120,000,000 in cash
and as to HK$300,000,000 by the Company issuing convertible
bonds with an initial conversion price of HK$0.26 per conversion
share. The transaction is subject to the approval of shareholders at
an extraordinary general meeting.

Yicko is a well-established brokerage company founded in 1992
in Hong Kong. It is a licensed corporation to carry out Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong.

The acquisition will enable the Group to make a meaningful step
in its strategic direction towards business diversification, and will
allow the Group to leverage on the past experiences of CITIC
Guoan Group* and Yicko to create synergies on brokerage and
other financial services business in Hong Kong.

The Group's total non-current assets amounted to approximately
HK$338.9 million (30 September 2016: HK$9.3 million) as at 31
December 2017 after the completion of acquisition of the office
premises.

The Group maintained its conservative low-inventory policy
during the Period. As a result, inventories remained at a relatively
low level of approximately HK$1.1 million (30 September 2016:
HK$1.4 million) at 31 December 2017.

*  For identification purpose only
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net trade receivables
of approximately HK$4.1 million (30 September 2016: HK$1.1
million). The Group’s bank borrowings stood at HK$4.5 million
(30 September 2016: HK$4.5 million), while its gearing ratio,
expressed as a percentage of total borrowings over total
assets, was 1.9% (30 September 2016: 69.5%). The gearing
ratio was significantly improved as the Group has utilised the
net proceeds of a rights issue to repay an interest-free and
unsecured loan of HK$336.2 million to Road Shine. A fixed
deposit of approximately HK$5.1 million (30 September 2016:
HK$5.0 million) was pledged to secure banking facilities. The
current ratio was approximately 1.77 (30 September 2016:
0.86) while the liquid ratio stood at approximately 1.74 (30
September 2016: 0.84).

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
2017 amounted to HK$73.5 million (30 September 2016:
HK$52.9 million).

The objective of the Group’s cash management policy is to
optimise liquidity to gain a better return for shareholders in
a risk-averse manner. At 31 December 2017, the value of the
Group's investment in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$0.2 million (30
September 2016: HK$0.2 million).

Amid the prevailing financial volatility, the Group is committed
to maintaining a conservative cash management policy and to
increasing operating efficiency.

2017 concluded with the global economy recording its best
performance in six years, and the stage is set for further
growth in 2018. However, risks prevail as the world has moved
into an unsettling geopolitical phase and as the United States
is on track to hike interest rates in 2018.

China’s growth remains healthy, and her economy grew faster
than expected in the fourth quarter of 2017, helped by a
rebound in the industrial sector and strong export growth. In
its January update, the International Monetary Fund lifted its
forecast for China’s economic growth to 6.6% in 2018.
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According to the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development (“OECD"), growth in Emerging Asia (including
China, India, and the ten member countries of ASEAN) will
remain robust over the medium term on the back of resilient
domestic demand, steady investment and trade recovery.
Barring unforeseen circumstances, Emerging Asia is expected
to post 6.3% growth on average between 2018 and 2022.
Southeast Asia’s growth will also remain strong. OECD notes
that regional integration has deepened over the years in terms
of trade, labour and finance. Initiatives promoting further
integration will be crucial for maintaining the stability of
growth in the region.

The Belt and Road Initiative led by China continues to gain
momentum. Spanning more than 60 countries and accounting
for about one-third of global GDP, the initiative promotes
closer economic cooperation and connectivity while offering
development opportunities for both the advanced and
emerging economies. In future, more investment projects
would emerge and the private sector can leverage its industry
and project expertise to participate in some of them.

The economic outlook for Hong Kong remains positive,
according to the Hong Kong SAR Government which
has pledged to continue promoting diversified economic
development.

The mobile segment, nevertheless, is expected to be dragged
down by a price war in a crowded five-player market. The
addition of a new entrant will continue to disrupt the market
and facilitate the grabbing of market share with a competitive
pricing strategy, which has triggered price cuts in the market.
Industry analysts expect mobile pricing to remain under
pressure as operators work to defend their respective market
shares. Furthermore, higher spectrum utilisation fees are
expected to be a negative factor in the near term.

Responding to the continuing tough market environment for
its telecommunications products trading and services provision
businesses, the Group will pursue diversification as a means
to generate alternate sources of revenue for the long-term
viability of its operations. The Group will prudently weigh
up the risks as well as the opportunities as it drives new
investment or business development initiatives.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEHEWR S Hh

Under this diversification drive, the Group has proposed
to acquire Yicko as a step to enable it to participate in the
brokerage and other financial services business. It will continue
to seek other viable investment opportunities in order to
broaden its business scope, and thus to strengthen its long-
term prospects and returns to shareholders. In particular, the
Group will place focus on investments or developments that
may create synergy with the businesses of its parent company,
and which may leverage its dual listing platform in Hong Kong
and Singapore.

To support long-term business growth, the Group will continue
to review and strengthen its financial position and asset base.
It will also adopt stringent risk management principles in the
course of evaluating and negotiating for any new business
developments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of
the top priorities of the Company. The board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is one of the areas that leads to the success of
the Company and in balancing the interests of shareholders,
customers and employees, and the Board is devoted to
ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and effectiveness of
such principles and practices.

Throughout the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 (the
“period”), the Company has complied with the code provisions
("Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and Responsibilities

The Board currently comprises nine directors (“Directors”),
of which two are Executive Directors, four are Non-executive
Directors and three are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board members of the Company during the period are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian
Mr. SO Haw Herman

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. DU Jun (Chairman)
Mr. LI Xiang Yu

Mr. CUI Ming Hong
Mr. YANG Li Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Chun Man
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi
Mr. NG Man Kung

EREIHRSE

TRERER

FEaMEBREXERRAURERZARBIR
E—ERARAZRBERANZ — - ARRE
EZe([E52 ) ) RRRFNERERRS
BARARBBRAKI M FERR EF kE
BreRNagzZAEZ— EFEHNRE
BUEZSRARER ZBMERBRML -

REBEZE-_T—+F+_A=+—BiIt+H
BEAZHME(THMEDAR A27]—HE
SEBMERZMAERARES LTRA
(T EmARRN) PR+ P8 2 (R EEIAST
AR P EL 2 57 AT (TsF RIS ) ©

EEg

KERBE

EESRMNBRES ([EF])MAK K&
TEEMANTES WEFRTESFK
“RBIUFATES

HAXRRETERER:

BITEE:
= Rak S A
bl

FHITESE:

HEXE (FFE)
FRHLLE
ERREE
BB

BUFHTESE:
FEXEE

BB E
RXHRE



During the period, there was no change in the composition of
the Board. The biographical details of each Director are set out
in the section headed Human Capital on pages from 35 to 38

While the Board is primarily overseeing and managing the
Company’s affairs, the Chairman of the Board provides
leadership to the Board in carrying out its duties. The
Executive Directors constituting the senior management of
the Company are delegated with responsibilities in the day-
to-day management of the Company and make operational
and business decisions within the control of and delegation
framework of the Company. The Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors) contribute
valuable views and proposals for the Board's deliberation and
decisions.

The Board members meet regularly, normally four times
each year at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Company. Other Board meetings will be

held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors. During
the period ended 31 December 2017, five regular Board
meetings were held and the attendance records of individual
Directors are set out below:

Executive Directors: HITESFE:
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian = R ok ST A
Mr. SO Haw Herman wR S E
Non-executive Directors: FHMITES:
Mr. DU Jun (Chairman) HEEE(FE)
Mr. LI Xiang Yu FHHEE
Mr. CUI Ming Hong ERRREYE
Mr. YANG Li Ming B %L
Independent Non-executive Directors: B EBITE
Mr. WONG Chun Man TRXEE
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi HBEEEE
Mr. NG Man Kung R EE
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Appropriate notices were given to all Directors in advance
for attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting
agendas and other relevant information are normally provided
to the Directors in advance of Board meetings. All Directors
are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda for
Board meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensure that Board
procedures, and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are
followed.

Draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comment and records respectively. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.

All Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have entered into service contracts with
the Company for a specific term of two years. Every Director
on Board is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

The Board is collectively responsible for appointing new
Directors either to fill causal vacancies or as additional Board
members and removing any Director. Candidates to be
appointed are those experienced, high caliber individuals with
sufficient skills and knowledge required for the positions. All
candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth in
rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director should
also meet the independence criteria set out in rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It maintains a board diversity
policy setting out the approach to diversity of members
of the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business. All Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Board established the Nomination Committee in March
2012, with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code Provisions, which have been reviewed from time to time
by the Board to keep them in line with the most up-to-date
requirements. The Committee currently comprises one Non-
executive Director, namely Mr. DU Jun and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. WONG Chun Man,
TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man Kung, and is chaired by Mr. DU
Jun. The most up-to-date written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s
website.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board regularly and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Its
duties include making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. In carrying out the responsibility of
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members
of the Board, the Committee will give adequate consideration
to the board diversity policy. The Committee is also responsible
for assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duties.

During the period ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board. It also assessed and confirmed the independence of the
three Independent Non-executive Directors, and recommended
to the Board the nomination of Mr. DU Jun, Mr. LI Xiang Yu and
Mr. WONG Chun Man for re-appointment as Directors by the
shareholders at the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
period, and the attendance record of individual Committee
members are set out below:

Mr. DU Jun (Chairman) MELAE (FFE)
Mr. WONG Chun Man TEXEE
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi ABEEAE

Mr. NG Man Kung RCHEAE
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The independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has been assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing
Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has made an annual written confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
guidelines for assessing independence set out in rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent.

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties which have been formalised into
the terms of reference of the Board, a summary of which are
as follows:—

— To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
any changes it considers necessary to ensure their
effectiveness;

— To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

-  To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

- To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

—  To review the Company’s compliance with the Code
Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the period, the Board reviewed and approved the
Corporate Governance Report contained in the Company’s
2016 Annual Report.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. Specific
enquiry has been made on all Directors who have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the period under review.

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Directors are continually updated
with regulatory and governance developments. During the
period, the Company provided all members of the Board with
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors are encouraged to participate in professional
development courses and seminars to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has devised a training
record to assist the Directors to record the training they have
undertaken.

During the period, Messrs. WONG Chun Man, LI Xiang Yu, YANG
Li Ming, TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man Kung received briefings
on updates of accounting standards from the auditors of the
Company at Audit Committee meetings. All of the Directors
were provided with reading materials on the relevant rules and
regulatory updates.

The remuneration policy of the Group is to ensure the fairness
and competitiveness of total remuneration. The emoluments
of Executive Directors are determined based on the skills,
knowledge, individual performance as well as contributions,
the scope of responsibility and accountability of such Directors,
taking into consideration the Company’s performance and
prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) is to ensure that the Non-executive Directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated
to the Company’s affairs including their participation in
the respective Board committees. The emoluments of Non-
executive Directors are determined with reference to their
experience, duties and knowledge.
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The Board established the Remuneration Committee in July
2006, with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provisions, which have been reviewed from time to
time by the Board to keep them in line with the most up-to-
date requirements. The Committee currently comprises one
Non-executive Director, namely Mr. CUlI Ming Hong and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. WONG
Chun Man, TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man Kung, and is chaired
by Mr. TSE Yung Hoi. The most up-to-date written terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s emolument
policy and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing such policy. Prior to making its
recommendations, the Committee consults the Chairman
of the Board and the Executive Directors and takes into
consideration factors including the Group’s performance
and profitability, experience, duties and time commitment
of Directors, prevailing market conditions, salaries paid by
comparable companies, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration. The Committee has adopted the operation
model where it performs an advisory role to the Board,
with the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management. The Committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

During the period, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration packages of the Directors and employees of
the Company. No Director was involved in deciding his own
remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRS

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
period, and the attendance record of individual Committee
members are set out as follows:

EEREREEAEZHME (B)

FMEEE (&)
FHMEZEENHABRRIT - REH L8
SERBZHEREFIWT

Number of

Meetings

Attended/Held

BHE BT

BERY

Mr. TSE Yung Hoi (Chairman) BBELE(EE) 1”71
Mr. CUI Ming Hong ERELE 0/1
Mr. WONG Chun Man FEXEE 11
Mr. NG Man Kung RHEAE 11

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set
out on pages 53 to 139 were prepared on a going concern
basis. Financial results of the Group are announced in a
timely manner in accordance with statutory and/or regulatory
requirements.

During the period, the Company engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") as the external auditors. Apart
from providing audit services, HLB also reviewed the interim
results of the Group. The fees in respect of audit and non-
audit services provided by HLB for the period ended 31
December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$1,200,000
and HK$876,000 respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of HLB are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 45 and 52.
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The Board has overall responsibility for the maintenance of
sound risk management and internal control systems within
the Group and reviewing their effectiveness.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the
responsibility to review the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, which include financial,
operational and compliance controls, and cover the areas of
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’'s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
Procedures have been set up for, inter alia, safeguarding
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, controlling
capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records
and ensuring the reliability of financial information used for
business and publications. Management throughout the Group
maintains and monitors the risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Board conducts review of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems semi-annually. During the period,
the review covered the aspects of financial, operational and
compliance controls, and assessed the effectiveness of such
systems by considering the work performed by the Audit
Committee, executive management and external auditors. The
Board was satisfied that the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate for their
purposes.

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in
December 2004, with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code Provisions, which have been reviewed from
time to time by the Board to keep them in line with the most
up-to-date requirements. The Committee currently comprises
two Non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. LI Xiang Yu and
YANG Li Ming and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Messrs. WONG Chun Man, TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man
Kung, and is chaired by Mr. WONG Chun Man. The most up-
to-date written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the Company’s website.
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The Audit Committee reports to the Board and has held
regular meetings to assist the Board in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting process,
internal controls and risk management systems. The
Committee monitors the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts and half-year report,
and reviews significant financial report judgments contained
therein. It reviews, makes recommendations and reports to
the Board on findings relating to the financial statements,
reports and accounts, systems of internal controls and
risk management and compliance issues. The Committee
also oversees the Company’s relationship with the external
auditors, reviews auditors’ letter of engagement and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
re-appointment of external auditors. It is empowered to
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards. It reviews external
auditors’ management letter and any material queries raised
by the auditors to the management and the management’s
response. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

During the period, the Audit Committee discussed and
reviewed with the management of the financial reporting
system, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, internal control procedures, risk management system
and the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experiences
of staff in the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and
internal control functions and the effectiveness of such
systems and functions. The Audit Committee also met with the
external auditors and reviewed the annual and interim reports
of the Company.
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The Audit Committee members met three times during the EZZEEe@XKERHPRERITZNEH

period, and the attendance records of individual Committee CERRNE 2 HFERESHINWT
members are set out below:

Number of

Meetings

Attended/Held

BHE ET

BRXE

Mr. WONG Chun Man (Chairman) FELE (EE) 3/3

Mr. LI Xiang Yu FR&BEE 2/3

Mr. YANG Li Ming B BREAE 2/3

Mr. TSE Yung Hoi BB EAE 3/3

Mr. NG Man Kung RXHEE 3/3

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for
guiding and monitoring the Company in discharging its
duties, certain responsibilities are delegated to various Board
committees which have been established by the Board to
deal with different aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless
otherwise specified in their respective written terms of
reference as approved by the Board, these Board committees
are governed by the Company’s articles of association as well
as the Board's policies and practices (in so far as the same are
not in conflict with the provision contained in the articles of
association).

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of
implementing its strategies and the day-to-day operation to
the management of the Company under the leadership of
the Executive Directors. Clear guidance has been made as
to the matters that should be reserved to the Board for its
decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital, finance
and financial reporting, internal controls, communication with
shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. WONG Man
Yiu who is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. WONG assists the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that the Board’s
policy and procedures including those on governance matters
are followed.
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The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to its
communication with the shareholders, with the objective of
ensuring effective and timely dissemination of information
to shareholders. Information would be communicated to
shareholders mainly through the Company’s corporate
communications including interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. These publications are sent to
the shareholders in a timely manner and are also available on
the website of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board, members of the Board and
external auditors attended the 2017 annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM") held on 24 March 2017. The
attendance record of the Directors at the AGM is set out
below:

EXeEY - EHAARAMERRER
ZBRFGEABUR - B R A BUR B A
AREMER -EREBBEBARAZD
EXEARETHHmE  Fh o BKA
PR B o % B TIYE R MR EF % - hA]
INZAYNSIFE R

EXZSTIR EFTgNERIMNEEREAEIY
HER-_T—tF=A - THBEHRTZA
R ZT—EFERBEFAE ([BREF
RE|) EFNBRBAFREHFE 2L
o

AGM
Attended/Held
BHE BITRR
BFERERE

1Al
1Al

I7Al
1Al
0/1
0/1

1Al
1Al

Executive Directors: HITESE:

Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian ERit v

Mr. SO Haw Herman RS E A
Non-executive Directors: FEHITEE :

Mr. DU Jun (Chairman) HELE (EE)
Mr. LI Xiang Yu FRIBTE

Mr. CUI Ming Hong ERRSEYE

Mr. YANG Li Ming B BR A
Independent Non-executive Directors: BB ITEF:
Mr. WONG Chun Man FEXEE

Mr. TSE Yung Hoi H BB E

Mr. NG Man Kung RPEE

Shareholders may enquire directly about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite information
of the Company is publicly available, shareholders and the
investment community may at any time make enquiry in respect of
the Company in writing at our head office in Hong Kong by post,
facsimile or email via the numbers and email address provided on
the Company’s website or through the Company’s Investor Relations
Adviser whose contact details are provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report.

1Al
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(continued)
Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any
two or more shareholders or any one shareholder which is a
clearing house (or its nominee) (in either case) holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings can
make a requisition to convene and put forward proposals
at an extraordinary general meeting. The requisition must
specify the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant requisitionist(s) and deposited at the head office of
the Company in Hong Kong.

Shareholders may put forward their enquires about the
Company to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong or by email or through
the Investor Relations Adviser of the Company.

Amendment to the Company’s Constitutional Documents

During the period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Company has not made any changes to its memorandum
and articles of association. An up-to-date version of the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company is
available on both the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Guoan International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are pleased to present
our first Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
Report for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 (the
“period”). It has been prepared with reference to Appendix 27
of the Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong (“HKEX ESG Guide").

The Group is committed to conducting business ethically
and with respect towards employees, customers, business
partners, society and the environment. Guided by a set of ESG
policies which our Board has adopted during the period, we
benchmark and work to continually improve our performance
in key areas of sustainability.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the trading of
telecommunications and other products, provision of repair
services for telecommunications products, money lending
business and investments in financial assets in Hong Kong.
The scope of this report therefore mainly includes data and
activities of the Group’s corporate headquarters and offices in
Hong Kong. Data collected for this report covers a period of
twelve months ended 31 December 2017 (the "year”).

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
assumes overall responsibility for the Group’'s ESG policy,
implementation and reporting. The Board has assessed the
materiality of each ESG subject area, aspect and KPI as
listed in the HKEX ESG Guide, with reference to the Group’s
stakeholders. Some KPIs have determined to be immaterial to
the Group’s business and hence are excluded from this report.

Going forward, the Group will work to enhance stakeholder
engagement and to progressively expand the scope of
reporting.

o Seek to reduce the environmental impact of
our operations through different schemes to
reduce energy and day-to-day operational inputs
consumption, to re-use materials where practicable,
and to collect and separate appropriate materials for
recycling.

o Go paperless where feasible.
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Label/Activity Organiser

g% ED EX 3 ¥

Energy Saving Charter 2017 Environment Bureau
ERREXIE 2017 RIRR

Let's Save 10L Water Water Supplies Department
75 SRR K+ A F K% E

Saying No to Shark Fin WWEF

[A) BB HEABRETE

Comply with relevant environmental legislation and
regulations and strive to go beyond them.

Support the environmental initiatives of the
communities where we operate.

Mooncake Sharing and Project Green

Moon Programme 2017

Food Angel

ASDZFR2017TRERFUAHRZLEW FRE

Use

[4f

Caritas Bamenda
Caritas Bamenda

d Shoes Recycling Programme

o BT | UG

The Group is a non-production company principally
engaged in trading, maintenance and customer
service activities, which do not have material impact
on the environment. Our business operations do not
produce hazardous waste and do not rely heavily on
energy consumption or water resources.

Emissions of greenhouse gases by the Group
were mainly contributed by the consumption of
purchased electricity at our corporate headquarters
and 3 offices in Hong Kong.

Indirect emission was mainly from paper usage in
offices, while non-hazardous waste was mainly
produced in the form of paper waste, printer
cartridges and toner bottles. Recognising the
indirect greenhouse gas emissions from business
air travel by employees, the Group encourages
employees to utilise video calls or teleconferences
where feasible.
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Date/Period
BHE,HE

June 2017 — May 2018
20176 H —2018%F5H
Since September 2017
201759 A%
Since October 2017
20175103 M %A

October 2017
20174 10H
November 2017
2017F11H
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Purchased electricity HE=
Other indirect emission H b 52 AR

Total annual carbon emission

During the period, the Group acquired a new office
property and thereafter on 31 March 2017 relocated
its headquarters and principal place of business to
this premise. Office remodelling planning and works
have subsequently been ongoing from September to
December 2017. During this period, staff members
have been working at temporary work stations.
The Group was therefore unable to accurately
record the use of water, paper and other non-
hazardous waste during the period. However, as a
principle, the Group goes paperless where feasible
and re-uses materials as much as practicable. The
Group’s corporate headquarters does not have an
independent fresh water account with the Water
Supplies Department, and therefore is unable to
obtain water consumption information.

The new headquarters was designed to maximise
the admission of natural daylight in order to reduce
energy for office lighting. Environmental impact
was also minimised through responsible sourcing.
Eco-friendly materials were selected where feasible
for the remodelling works undertaken during the
period, and formaldehyde-free fixtures were used.
Old furniture was retained as much as possible
for use in the remodelled office, or donated to
respective social groups for re-use. Electrical
appliances with Grade 1 energy labels and LED
lights were purchased.

As a practice, office lights, computers and other
electrical appliances are switched off when not in
use. In view of the Group’s business nature, there is
no significant raw material or packaging being used
in operations.

Y (1737 37 6

Annual electricity
consumption
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183 tonnes M
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The Group is delighted to receive the Caring Company
2017/18 logo from the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service to commend its good corporate citizenship.
The Caring Company scheme is a widely recognised
corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) programme in
Hong Kong aiming at building strategic partnerships
among businesses and non-profit organisations to create
a more cohesive society. Through cross-sectoral activities
and exchanges, the two sectors can get to know and
understand each other and develop community projects
matching with community needs.
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Label/Activity
B,/ EE

Community Chest Dress Casual Day 2017 The Community Chest

T+ ERHeERA

Organiser Date/Period

EREE HA

12 October 2017
YN 20174104128

Hong Kong Corporate Social Responsibility Community Business

Charter

BERLEMEGERENE
Donation to so<:|al programmes
B FILETE

Visiting the elderly

Ra k&

Caring Company 2017/18

7 AR 122017/18

Since September 2017

HRHEIE H2017F9 A Mk

Community service agencies December 2017

tE R EE 2017412

Community service agencies December 2017

R RS R 2017412

The Hong Kong Council of Social

Service 1 March 2018 - 28 February 2019

EEteREHe 201853 A1H —2019F2 A28H

e Adhere to equal opportunity principles in the . ’D\ﬂET’jEm%I‘%?ﬁ B
recruitment, selection, compensation, training, HEA R EE RS S
appraisal and career advancement of staff. ERLEBIFTERER

U

e Hire and promote staff members based on o REREHEZE -EAXRRE
objective criteria, individual performance and MEBMERMEAETL -
merit.

e Prohibit any form of forced labour and adhere o B FFMAE R G L

to the minimum age provisions of applicable
laws and regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIR - ERELIRS

B. SOCIAL (continued)
B1. Employment (continued)
Workplace Quality Policy

e  Aim to offer a welcoming and positive work
environment in which members of staff are
treated with respect and dignity.

o Promote inclusivity and equality in the
workplace.

° Maintain a work environment that is free from
discrimination on the basis of sex, disability,
family status, race or religion. Discriminatory
behaviour or harassment will not be tolerated.

In addition to full compliance with labour laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, the Group has in place a
set of open and fair employment policies to guide
its human resources activities. This policy covers
compensation, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours and conditions, and other benefits
and welfare of employees. The policy also ensures
equal opportunity for all employees and diversity.
Discriminatory behaviour of any employee or in
treatment of staff matters are strictly prohibited.

During the year, approximately 93% of staff were
permanent and full-time, and the staff turnover
rate was 42%. The Group maintains a generally
diversified combination of employees which
provides a balanced mix of skills, experience and
job knowledge to support its different operational
requirements. Employees departed during the year
were mostly customer services staff, the general
industry turnover rate of which is relatively high.
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Staff by Gender as at 31 December 2017 Number of
Employees

R-E—tF+-A=+-—HEHERNEIH

ETI¥E EI®A

Male S 64

Female 4 61

Total number of staff BT 125




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B.

SOCIAL (continued)

B1.

B2.

B3.

B4.

Employment (continued)

Workplace Quality Policy (continued)
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Staff by Age Group as at 31 December 2017 Number of
Employees

R-ZB—tHF+-A=+-HRFREIN

ETHA ETHA

Below 30 30 AT 40

Age 31-50 315 Z2505% 72

Over 50 505% A £ 13

Total number of staff B TR 125

Health and Safety B2. BREHZZE

Health and Safety Policy REHEZTEHE

o Operate in full compliance with all o PHEBTFAAEBE@EN

occupational health and safety legislation. ZEEiE o

o Provide and maintain a healthy and safe work
environment and strive to prevent workplace
accidents.

The Group is committed to maintaining a healthy
and safe workplace for employees, and observes
all the requirements under the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong. There were
no reported lost days due to work injury during the
period.

Development and Training

Staff are encouraged to receive training in their
respective professional fields and are provided with
paid leave for attending relevant programmes or
public examinations during office hours. Senior
management members attended sessions to update
them on corporate governance issues and the latest
audit requirements three times during the period.

Labour Standards

The Group complies strictly with relevant laws and
regulations, including prohibiting child or forced labour
for any position. There was no legal case brought
against the Group or its employees for violation of
labour laws or regulations during the period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RBE - -dEREIRE

B. SOCIAL (continued) B. #€ (&)
B5. Supply Chain Management B5. fHEHEEE

The Group had one major supplier (the “Supplier”)
for its trading and repair services business
segments. According to the Supplier’s published
sustainability report of 2017, it fully endorses the
UN Sustainable Development Goals (“UN SDGs")
that aim to achieve a balanced development
of economy, society and environment through
business’ engagement and value creation. In
alignment with the UN SDGs, the Supplier reported
that it had taken steps to manage water resource
risks in the workplace and monitor the quality of
the effluent; researched technology that reduces
energy use and adopted such technology for
its products; implemented energy use reduction
projects at overseas subsidiaries; adopted an eco-
design process and in-house eco product rating
system in the product development phase; operated
a programme to recover and recycle waste products;
reduced greenhouse gas emissions in the workplace
and increased the use of renewable energy;
implemented pilot climate change adaptation
projects with an academic institute; and developed
biodiversity preservation guidelines and identified
and improved its impact on the aquatic ecosystem
and the habitats of endangered species.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRE MERELIEE

B. SOCIAL (continued)

B6.

Product Responsibility

Responsible Product and Supply Chain Policy

Continuously improve the quality of our
products and services.

Safeguard the health and safety of customers,
and protect customer privacy and consumer
rights in accordance with applicable
legislation.

Committed to the protection of intellectual
property.

Ensure fair and reasonable treatment
of suppliers and service providers in the
procurement process.

For the trading segment, there had not been any
product recalls for safety or health reasons during
the period. The Supplier of mobile phones provides
a warranty on the products it supplies to the Group
for distribution. Generally the warranty provided by
the Supplier covers one year. For some products or
products purchased under special promotion, the
warranty period may cover up to two years. The
Supplier also adopts strict quality control procedures
on its products.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B6.

B7.

BS.

Product Responsibility (continued)

Responsible Product and Supply Chain Policy
(continued)

The repair services segment recorded 3-5 incidents
of customer complaints per day, which were
resolved with the provision of further repair services.

The Group observes the Codes of Practice issued by
the Office of the Privacy Commission for Personal
Data. The repair services segment has in place a
system to erase and separately store all data on
customers’ mobile phones prior to maintenance,
and erase such data from the Group’s system after
restoring them on customers’ mobile phones. There
had not been any reported case of data or privacy
infringement during the period.

Anti-corruption
Governance Policy

o Maintain a strong commitment to conducting
business ethically.

e Adopt good corporate governance practices.

o Employees are prohibited from soliciting,
accepting or offering advantages when dealing
with the Group’s business.

o Operate in full compliance with all regulatory
reporting requirements for monetary
transactions.

The Group complies with the Sample Code of
Conduct by the Independent Commission Against
Corruption for the private sector. There had not
been any legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees during
the period.

Community Investment

The Group made a total donation of HK$10,000
to charitable organisations in Hong Kong during
the Period. Its staff members have also participated
in home visits, in-kind donation and other CSR
activities.
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The biographical details of each Director are set out below:

Mr. HUANG, aged 57, was appointed as Executive Director
on 11 March 2016. He is an experienced businessman in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). During the period from
October 2000 to March 2015, Mr. HUANG worked in 115 44
A PRA T N4/ 7] (CITIC Networks Limited — Shenzhen
Branch*), a wholly-owned subsidiary under [ {5 4 [ A
FR 2 ) (CITIC Group Corporation*), in the capacity of general
manager and was responsible for managing the operation
of the Shenzhen Branch including budgeting, development,
operations and strategies in the region of southern and
eastern Guangdong as well as liaising with corresponding
governmental departments. Since 2009, Mr. HUANG has been
acting as deputy managing director (&l % %) of Guoan (HK)
Holdings Limited, the immediate holding company of Road
Shine Developments Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. SO, aged 35, was appointed as Executive Director on 3
February 2016. He is a holder of a Master Degree of Business
Administration at the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. Mr. SO has experiences in banking services,
commercial and residential real estate investment and
development, developments and operations in information
technology industry, mergers and acquisitions and general
management. Mr. SO had worked in China Construction Bank
(Asia) Corp. Ltd., Hong Kong for more than three and a half
years. Subsequently, Mr. SO took up the role as a director in a
private business group specialized in real estate development
projects and investment in Hong Kong and the PRC. For
the period from June 2011 to August 2015, Mr. SO was an
executive director of Gold Tat Group International Limited
(stock code: 8266), engaging in the businesses of information
technology and electronic parts trading.

Mr. DU, aged 49, was appointed as Non-executive Director on
11 March 2016. He graduated from Shaanxi College of Finance
and Economics with a Master Degree of Economics. He was
an engineer in the early years, and until 1996 he joined Beijing
Securities Limited and has become very experienced in the
finance industry over the years.

*  For identification purpose only
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In 2005, Mr. DU joined CITIC Guoan Group* and became the
capital operation manager in 2006. In 2015, he was appointed
as the deputy general manager of CITIC Guoan Group*, mainly
responsible for capital operation and fund management.
Currently he is also a director or a member of the senior
management of the subsidiary companies of CITIC Guoan
Group* managing investment, elderly services and winery
business.

Mr. LI, aged 50, was appointed as Non-executive Director
on 11 March 2016. He graduated from Renmin University of
China with Bachelor Degree of Economics. In 1995, he got the
qualification of Senior Accountant in Beijing and has been very
experienced in the finance industry for years.

Mr. LI joined CITIC Guoan Group* in 2000 and became the
deputy manager and manager in finance department in 2002
and 2007 respectively. In 2015, he became the deputy general
manager of CITIC Guoan Group*, mainly responsible for
finance management etc. Currently he is also a director of
the subsidiary companies of CITIC Guoan Group* managing
technology, asset management, travel investment and hotel
businesses.

Mr. CUI, aged 53, was appointed Non-executive Director on
11 March 2016. He got his professional qualification of Physics
and graduated in the Capital Normal University (ex-Beijing
Normal College).

In 1998, Mr. CUI joined CITIC Guoan Group* and became
the deputy manager and manager in integrated planning
department in 1999 and 2007 respectively. In 2015, he
became the deputy general manager of CITIC Guoan Group¥*,
mainly responsible for business strategic planning and project
management etc.

Currently Mr. CUl is also a director of the subsidiary companies
of CITIC Guoan Group* managing properties investment, asset
management and winery businesses.

Mr. YANG, aged 60, was appointed as Non-executive Director
on 11 March 2016. He graduated from B A E fift i & 172
L THEEEBE for electrical engineering qualification. He also got
the professional qualification as Engineer from B A R fif filt 5
IR ER and was an engineer in his early years.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. YANG joined CITIC Guoan Group* in 1993. In 2007, Mr.
YANG became the deputy officer of the board of directors
office of the group and was promoted to general officer of
the group in 2011. Mr. YANG has played a role in different
subsidiary companies and businesses of the group over
the years and become very experienced in integrated and
operational management.

Mr. WONG, aged 42 was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director on 11 March 2016. He is a holder of a
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration at the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. WONG has experiences in
corporate finance and financial media. Mr. WONG is a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Chartered Financial Analyst of the CFA Institute. Mr. WONG
worked as a senior auditor at PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong
Kong from 1999 to 2001. Mr. WONG has been the finance
director at Neo Media Investment Management Group Limited
since 2006 and is a managing partner at Share News Media
Company Limited since 2014. He is a member of the 12th
Yanbian Korean Autonomous Prefecture in Jilin Province of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference ([ A BB
mEERSE T EEREEEARNEEGLA).

Mr. TSE, aged 65 was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director on 11 March 2016. He graduated from
English studies from the Department of Foreign Languages
and Literatures of Fudan University in July 1975. He is currently
the Chairman and Non-executive Director of BOCI-Prudential
Asset Management Limited. Mr. TSE serves as council member
of HKSAR Financial Services Development Council, member
of Election Affairs Commission (Financial Services), Standing
Committee Member of the Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce and Permanent Honorary President of Hong Kong
Chinese Securities Association. Mr. TSE is also the independent
non-executive director of HJ Capital (International) Holdings
Company Limited (formerly known as iOne Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 982), BOCOM International Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 3329), DTXC Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 620) and Shenzhen
Qianhai Financial Holdings Company Ltd. Mr. TSE was awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the Government of HKSAR in
2013.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. NG, aged 66, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director on 11 March 2016. He graduated from
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with an attendance
certificate in banking. Mr. NG has over 28 years of
management experience in banking industry. He had worked
as a business consultant at China Orient Asset Management
(International) Holding Limited, a company principally engaged
in investment from January 2014 to April 2015. He was
appointed as managing director and general manager of
Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd. in 1992 and was its vice-
chairman and chief executive from 2001 to 2012. Mr. NG
was an honorary president of the 38th Chinese Bankers
Club, Hong Kong, a member of the Council of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University from 1995 to 1999 and a member of
the Fujian Province Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (4B A B BUA 1) i & s tm 22 & & B
&% 5) from 1993 to 2013. Mr. NG is an independent non-
executive director of Fujian Holdings Limited (stock code: 181)
since 30 June 2014, an independent non-executive director of
ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (stock code: 1395) since
5 September 2014 and an independent non-executive director
of China HKBridge Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Topsearch International (Holdings) Limited) (stock code: 2323)
since 22 March 2016. On 25 May 2017, Mr. NG was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Shanghai Zendai
Property Limited (stock code: 755). He was also appointed as
non-executive director of Roma Group Limited (stock code:
8072) on 24 August 2017 and resigned from the position on
18 December 2017.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
fifteen months ended 31 December 2017.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the fifteen months
ended 31 December 2017 by business and geographical
segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A fair review of the Group’s business, including the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, the important events
affecting the Group that have occurred after 31 December
2017 and the likely future development, is set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 6 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 12.

The results of the Group for the fifteen months ended 31
December 2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 53.

The Directors resolved not to make any payment of an interim
dividend (2016: HK$ Nil) and do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend (2016: HK$ Nil) for the fifteen months
ended 31 December 2017.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 56 to 57 and Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the fifteen months ended 31 December
2017 are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group at 31 December
2017 are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the fifteen months ended 31
December 2017 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian
Mr. SO Haw Herman

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. DU Jun (Chairman)
Mr. LI Xiang Yu

Mr. CUI Ming Hong
Mr. YANG Li Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Chun Man
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi
Mr. NG Man Kung

In accordance with Article 116 of the Article of Association of
the Company, Mr. CUI Ming Hong, Mr. YANG Li Ming and Mr.
TSE Yung Hoi shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
35 to 38.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of distributable reserves of the Company at 31
December 2017 are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 140.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting have a service
contract with Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed, no transactions were entered into by the
Group during the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017,
which constitute connected transactions under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no Directors had material beneficial interests,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at any time
during the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017, no
Director had been recorded as having interests in any business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of Directors’ liability.
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At 31 December 2017, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

At 31 December 2017, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained under section 336 of the SFO shows that the
following company (not being Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had long positions of 5% or more in the shares
of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity

IR &8 514

Beneficial owner

oA A

Interest of controlled
corporation

G E B

Interest of controlled
corporation

SRR E B R

Road Shine Developments Limited

Guoan (HK) Holdings Limited (Note)
Bz (H8)ZERERAR (M)

FERLZEEABRAA
(CITIC Guoan Group*) (Note)
P ERZEEERAR (M)

Note: Road Shine Developments Limited is held as to 100% by Guoan
(HK) Holdings Limited, which in turn is held as to 100% by CITIC
Guoan Group*. Under the SFO, each of Guoan (HK) Holdings
Limited and CITIC Guoan Group* is deemed to be interested in
all the shares held by Road Shine Developments Limited.

*  For identification purpose only
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary shares shareholding
ZERNEE FRESNBEIHL
4,123,816,337 53.218%
4,123,816,337 53.218%
4,123,816,337 53.218%

BfzE : Road Shine Developments Limited i B %2
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
having an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 March 2015, a share option scheme (the “Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders of the Company.
No share option has been granted under the Option Scheme
since its adoption.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the fifteen months
ended 31 December 2017 attributable to the Group’s major
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Percentage

of the total

purchases/sales

accounted for

FiEBE

HEHH

Batk
Purchases BERE

— the largest supplier - AN HER 86.3%

— five largest suppliers combined -ARHEEEE 98.7%
Sales $H & 7R

— the largest customer -mAEP 52.5%

— five largest customers combined -AEABPEE 64.2%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the
five largest suppliers or customers of the Group noted above.
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association although there are no
restrictions against such rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

On 1 December 2000, the Group set up a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in association with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “MPF Ordinance”). The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group and are under the control of an independent trustee.

The Group and its employees are each required to make a
mandatory contribution of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries
to the MPF Scheme, subject to a maximum contribution
of HK$1,500 per month during the fifteen months ended
31 December 2017 as prescribed by the MPF Ordinance.
Members are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory
contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but
all benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be
preserved until an employee reaches the retirement age of 65
or in accordance with the rules of MPF Scheme.

In addition to the mandatory contributions, the Group
makes voluntary contributions for certain employees during
the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017. In any event,
the total monthly contributions made by the Group to an
employee are capped at 5% of the relevant employee’s basic
salaries.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and a
resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the said meeting.

On behalf of the Board
DU Jun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2018
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HL

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

GUOAN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS GLOBAL TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Guoan International Limited (formerly known as Global Tech
(Holdings) Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to
139, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the fifteen months
period from 1 October 2016 to 31 December 2017, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the fifteen months period from 1 October 2016 to 31
December 2017 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Refer to Notes 17 and 19 in the consolidated financial statements

F2HEA M BREME17R19

The key audit matter

BREXREE

The Group has loan receivables of
approximately HK$10,000,000 and trade
receivables of approximately HK$4,114,000.
Management judgement is required in
assessing and determining the recoverability
of loan and trade receivables and adequacy of
allowance made.
EXEBZRKRERRE S RBERS BIKRB
#10,000,0007T & & #4,114,0007T - IR EA
REHE RETFRWERRE FRIRRZ AT
[B] 14 LA K% P E 58 1 2 78 2 M B 1 I 1 B o

The judgement mainly includes estimating
and evaluating expected future receipts from
customers based on past payment trend, age
of the debtors, knowledge of the customers’
businesses and financial condition.
ZAHTERRBEBENTBE BRRZE
i BEFPEBRMBRA T B Rt
RERP 2 BEARKWA -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EEREERTHEERZE

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of loan and trade receivables included:
EEREUERBHERERRE HRURR ZBENHZ
ErFeE:

e Discussing the Group's procedures on loan credit
limits and credit periods given to customers with the
management;

e HEREIW EEERTEFENRGEEREREE
Hzi2F:

e Evaluating the management’'s impairment assessment
of loan and trade receivables;

e MEEEEBYHEWERKLEZREER ZMENE:

e Assessing, validating and discussing with the
management and evaluating their assessment on
the recoverability of the outstanding debts and the
adequacy of allowance made based on the loan
and trade receivables ageing analysis, collections
subsequent to the end of the reporting period, past
collection history and trend analysis and knowledge of
the businesses, with focus on long outstanding debts
and debts which are past due but not impaired; and

o HEBEETHMG RBRILFW UREEWERLE
2B ERFRE DT - R E ARG 2 WHBER B
FWARFEREBEBEOT R TRIBREFLRER
Bz AT @M ERE 2 R RIEZ 5 & W HE
REABEEHEMNEBRERBECER: &

e Checking on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of information included in the impairment
assessment of loan and trade receivables.

s MEBRERWERNEHRERKKRIBENHAEHER
Z SEREE R AR R -

We consider the management conclusion to be consistent
with the available information.
EERREREAREMMREEN B



Refer to Note 33 in the consolidated financial statements

2R A M S M 33

The key audit matter

BREREE

On 24 March 2017, the Group acquired
the entire equity interest in Eagle Faith
Investments Limited (“Eagle Faith”) at a
total cash consideration of approximately
HK$323,898,000 (the “Acquisition”). Eagle
Faith held a property in Hong Kong.
R-T—tF=A-_tHME- EXBEWEE
EREBRRAF ([EE]) 22ME  #RE
RIBX A5 %323,898,0007T ([KEBEE]) -
EBEREBRAEYE-

Management concluded that the above
Acquisition constituted an acquisition of assets
instead of a business combination because the
acquired entity and assets did not constitute
the carrying on of a business (i.e. there are
no processes applied to the inputs that have
the ability to create outputs). Eagle Faith is a
property investment holding company with
no operation while all the lease agreements
were terminated before the acquisition. Such
conclusion depends on significant judgement
made by management.

ERERR DMWEREBKEERE  mIE
XBe0 RASMUBERMNEEL THK
5% (AR Y EAIEEHH 2 £EBRRE) ©
BEA—HEXBZMEREERAR  MmA
BHEHACDRNBWBEBNRZ L - BRAGHIURR
EEREFEL 2 EBRHE-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERFZRERZE

Our procedures in relation to management’s judgements in

determining whether the Acquisition constituted business

combination included:
EEHEREHETWRETESRBREBRG M 2 H&

Z&Fﬁ%-

e Obtaining the sales and purchase agreement and
reviewing the terms regarding the Acquisition;

s KEREEMANMBHUWBEZTEAHZMGK:

e Checking the termination agreements entered
into by Eagle Faith and the lessee to ensure all
lease agreement had been terminated before the
Acquisition.

s REBFEHEHAMARIZZ&IHBH UERMEEE
R RN BEEERR L -

We considered the managment conclusion to be consitent
with the available information.
EERREEEAREMMREEN B



The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not included the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon (“Other
Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 15 March 2018
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the period/year

Other comprehensive income
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations

Other comprehensive income for the
period/year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the period/
year

Loss for the period/year attributable to
owners of the Company

Total comprehensive loss for the period/
year attributable to owners of the
Company

Loss per share attributable to owners of
the Company
Basic and diluted (HK cents)

The accompanying notes form an
consolidated financial statements.

integral part of these
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Year ended

30 September
2016

HK$'000
BE_Z—F
AA=FALE
FE
BETT

Notes

Kt

7 103,401
(75,668)

27,733

10 (25,299)
11 =

133

133

(25,166)

(25,299)

(25,166)

(Restated)
(&E75)

13 (0.45)
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Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Available-for-sale financial assets
Loan and interest receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Pledged time deposits

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Accrued charges and other payables

Bank borrowings

Loan from the immediate holding
company

Loan from the ultimate holding
company

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

HRBEE

WE BB KR
AfthESRMEE
PR B SR B R R

REBEE

&

e B 5 /KK

BN RRR - e S H R WK
18
FBBEmANTFEEIIRZE
BMEE

QI QEIE ]
EEMERHFR

B MIRITHEER

REBRE

e 8 SRR

FERT B A R E AR R
RITIEE
HEERARER

REER A B ER

RBEE(BE)FHE

REERRDEE

Notes

&t

14
16
17

18
19

20

21

22
23

24
25
26
27

28

At

30 September
2016
HK$'000
RZZT—RF
NA=1+H
B FIT

3,343
5,950

9,293

1,432

1,137

8,415

204

5,044
52,923

69,155

2,622
23,397
4,500

50,000

80,519

(11,364)

(2,071)



Non-current liability IRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAE
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (8628

Equity Em

At

30 September

2016

Notes HK$000
RZZE—RF

NA=1+H

Htf & BT T

29 =

(2,071)

Capital and reserves attributable to A2 A #EHE A BIEE R R #E

owners of the Company

Share capital f% 7
Reserves {7 8
Total equity BiEs

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March
2018 and signed on its behalf by:

HUANG Zhen Qian
EiR®
Executive Director
HITEF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

30 51,659
(53,730)

(2,071)

HAEVBREER T N\F=A+aH
EESe M ERRETE XH TIES
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SO Haw Herman
#ROom
Executive Director
HITEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HIET+HAA

Capital Exchange
Share Share Capital  redemption  difference  Accumulated

capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
k& R&aE Exif E4ARORE EXZERG ZitER Chl
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
E¥Tr  E¥Tr EETr EETr EETr EETn EETx

(note a) (note b)

(Wita) (Hith)

At 1 October 2015 RZE-1F+A-H 51,659 457 804 2,450 160 5,841 (494,819) 23,095
Loss for the year rEEE®R = = = = = (25,299) (25,299)

Other comprehensive income ~ Eft2ENA
Item that may be reclassified B ER 1 EEERZ
subsequently to profit or loss: B § -

Exchange differences REBNEH ERES
on translating foreign
operations - - - - 133 - 133

Total comprehensive income/  AEF2EUN/ (BB
(loss) for the year g% - - - - 133 (25,299) (25,166)

At 30 September 2016 and 1~ R=E-REAA=THR
October 2016 “E-AEtA-H 51,659 457,804 2,450 160 5974 (520,118) ,0m)

Loss for the period AERER - - - - - (45,892) (45,892)
Other comprehensive income £ H2EHA
Item that may be reclassified ~ E#T#EH S EEER

subsequently to profit or foss: B4 :

Eichange differences HEBNEB ERER
on translating foreign
operations - - - - 133 - 133

Total comprehensive income/  AHE2ARA/ (BB

(loss) for the period ek = = = = 133 (45,892) (45,759)
Rights issue g 25,830 413,278 = = = = 439,108
Share issuance expenses P OEGT 5 = (12,185) = = = = (12,185)

At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE
+zB=t-A 77,489 858,897 2,450 160 6,107 (566,010) 379,093




Notes:

(a)

(b)

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the repurchase
of shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited during the financial year of 30 September 2000.
These repurchased shares were cancelled upon repurchase
and, accordingly, the nominal value of the cancelled shares
was credited to capital redemption reserve and the aggregate
consideration paid was debited to the retained earnings and
share premium account.

Exchange difference reserve

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their functional
currencies to the Group's presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange difference reserve. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy of foreign
currencies set out in Note 3(h).

Ff et -

(a)

(b)
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Bad debts written off

Unrealised gain from financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss

Loss on written off of property, plant and

equipment
Allowance for inventories

Reversal of allowance for inventories

Written off of inventories
Dividend income

Interest income

Interest expense

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital
Decrease in inventories

Increase in loan and interest receivables
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other

receivables
Decrease in trade payables

Increased in accrued charges and other

payables

Cash used in operating activities
Profit tax refund
Profit tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

REXBoRERE

R 70 A /65 48

HEER
il
RERMHE

BERBROATEETEZ K23

eREERR
mEME BERREBR

FaRE
BOFERE
FEMH
BEWA
FEWA
MEFIX

FERD
W E R R B IE 0
JEWRE 5 B8Rk (B m) /R

BNFE R RE b EKEEE

8 5 &R508 D
st B M A B SRE

BEEBEAIAS
REHEH
BHEH

REXBERASFE

Notes

Kt

10,14
10

Year ended

30 September
2016

HK$°000
BE_T—\F
NAA=+HIt
FE
BEF T

(25,299)

1,396
63

(27)

(23,199)
290

110

(314)
(1,717)

15,385

(9,445)
20

(9,425)



CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Net cash outflow on acquisition of asset
Dividend received

Interest received

Increase in pledged time deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

Share issuance expenses

Interest paid

Increase in loan from the immediate holding
company

Repayments of loan from the immediate holding
company

Increase in loan from the ultimate holding
company

Increase in bank borrowings

Repayments of bank borrowings

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period/year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
period/year

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and bank balances

Note

Htat
REXBRERE
BEVE BELERE
WREEZREREFR 33
B S
EWF S
B E BRI
REXBER RS FE
REZDCRERE
BT EBRAENA
Bin BT
ERA 2
BERERAREREM
EREERERLDRER
R AR E UL N

ITIEEE M
EERITEE

MERPELCHEFR
ReRASEENEMER
B,/ FNZRERALEEY

EX2H &

B/ FRZRERAELEEY

ReRASSENGEHIN

Be RFTHER

Year ended

30 September
2016

HK$'000
BE_T—\F
AB=tHIE
FE
BT

52,923

52,923



*

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
9 December 1998 as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares have a primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and a secondary listing on Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited.

The registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 15th Floor of Tower Il, Admiralty
Centre, No.18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an
extraordinary general meeting on 18 August 2017, the
Company changed its name from “Global Tech (Holdings)
Limited” to “Guoan International Limited” and adopted
the Chinese name of "BIZ R AR AR as the new
dual foreign name of the Company in place of its former
dual foreign name of "IRIRFIFZIERBR AR, The
Registrar of Companies in Cayman Islands issued a
Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name bearing
the new name of the Company on 21 August 2017. The
new name was confirmed by the Registrar of Companies
in Hong Kong on 11 September 2017 under Part 16 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

During the current financial period, the reporting period
end date of the Group was changed from 30 September
to 31 December because the Group would like to align
its financial year end date with CITIC Guoan Group*
so as to facilitate the preparation of consolidated
financial statements of the Company and those of
CITIC Guoan Group*, which is for the benefit of the
overall development of the Group. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements for the current period
cover the fifteen months period ended 31 December
2017. The corresponding comparative amounts shown
for the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows
and related notes cover the year ended 30 September
2016 and therefore may not be comparable with
amounts shown for the current period.
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*

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and the principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
regard Road Shine Developments Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands as the immediate
holding company, and CITIC Guoan Group*, a company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") as the ultimate holding company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“HK$'000") except otherwise
indicated.

The accounting policies adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for the fifteen months ended 31
December 2017 are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Group’s annual financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2016 except as
described below.

In the current period, the Group has applied for the
first time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (“new and revised
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), which are effective
for the Group’s financial period beginning on 1 October
2016.
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HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38  Clarification of Acceptable
(Amendments) Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities: Applying
HKAS 28 the Consolidation
(Amendments) Exception

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

In the opinion of the Directors, the application of the
new and revised HKFRSs in the current period has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior periods and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKAS 7 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

Disclosure Initiative'
Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses'
Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures®

HKAS 40 (Admendments) Transfer of Investment Property?

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) (Amendments)
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK (IFRIC) — Int 22
K (IFRIC) - Int 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle3
Classification and Measurement
of Share-based, Payment
Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?
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! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined

2 Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2021

HKFRS 9 (As revised in 2014) introduces new impairment
requirement for all financial assets that are not measured
at fair value through profit or loss and amendments to
the previously finalised classification and measurement
requirements.

A new "“expected loss” impairment model in HKFRS 9
replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. For
financial assets at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, an entity will now always
recognise (at a minimum) 12 months of expected losses
in profit or loss. For trade receivables, there is a practical
expedient to calculate expected credit losses using a
provision matrix based on historical loss patterns or
customer bases.
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HKFRS 9 also introduces additional application guidance
to clarify the requirements for contractual cash flows
of a financial asset to give rise to payments that are
Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (“SPPI”), one
of the two criteria that need to be met for an asset to
be measured at amortised cost, which may result in
additional financial assets being measured at amortised
cost.

A third measurement category has also been added
for debt instruments — fair value through other
comprehensive income which applies to debt instruments
that meet the SPPI contractual cash flow characteristic
test.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies at 31 December 2017, the
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material
impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets. The Group’s available-for-
sale financial assets, including those currently stated at
cost less any identified impairment losses, will either
be measured as fair value through profit or loss or
be designated as FVTOCI (subject to fulfilment of the
designation criteria). In addition, the expected credit loss
model may result in early provision of credit losses which
are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost.
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HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"”) as follows:

e The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt
instrument is classified as FVTOCI then
effective interest, impairments and gains/
losses on disposal will be recognised in
profit or loss.

o For equity securities, the classification is
FVTPL regardless of the entity’s business
model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the
entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCL. If an equity security
is designated as FVTOCI then only
dividend income on that security will be
recognized in profit or loss. Gains, losses
and impairments on that security will
be recognised in other comprehensive
income without recycling.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e MEHEHE

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

(a) Classification and measurement (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

The Group has assessed that its financial assets
currently measured at FVTPL will continue
with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

With respect to the Group's financial assets
currently classified as "available-for-sale”,
these are club debentures which the Group
may classify as either FVTPL or irrevocably elect
to designate as FVTOCI (without recycling) on
transaction to HKFRS 9.

As 31 December 2017, the Group held
available-for-sale at cost amounted to
HK$5,950,000 (Note 16). The Group plans to
recognise any fair value changes in respect of
all the available-for-sale in profit or loss (i.e.
FVTPL) as they arise.
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HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e MEHEHE

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue
is recognised when control of a good or service transfers
to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

The Group's revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in Note 3. Management has assessed the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group's financial
statements and does not expect a significant impact on
the recognition of revenue.
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HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of
the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash payments of the lease liability into
a principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Also, the right-of-use asset and these lease liabilities
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option
to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for these two types of leases differently.

As set out in Note 35, total operating lease commitments
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$6,059,000 and had original lease term
within 3 years.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 to the Group’s financial position of the Group.
It is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of the application of HKFRS 16 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition,
the amendments also require disclosures on changes in
financial assets if cash flows from those financial assets
were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash flows
from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and
(v) other changes.
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A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in Note 23. Consistent
with the transition provisions of the amendments, the
Group has not disclosed comparative information for the
prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in Note
23, the application of these amendments has had no
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
other new and revised HKFRSs will have material impact
on the financial position and financial performance of the
Group.

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are set-out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the year presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
HKFRSs, which is a collective term that includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost convention.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS
36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;
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o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities (including structured entities) controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded
in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"),
who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.
Segment assets and liabilities include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, inventories, receivables, other
assets, operating cash and exclude mainly available-
for-sale financial assets and tax recoverable.
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and
exclude items such as tax payable, deferred tax and
certain corporate provisions.

Geographical information is not presented as the
majority of the Group's revenue is attributed to
customers in Hong Kong and the majority of assets
are located in Hong Kong.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

i. Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has passed. Revenue from
the sale of goods is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net
of returns and allowances and trade discounts;

ii.  Service income is recognised when services are
rendered;

iii. Sales of financial assets are recognised on a
trade date basis;
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iv. interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

v.  Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised
when the Group's right to receive payment is
established.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
the property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of property, plant and equipment, using the
straight-line method, over their estimated useful
lives. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Building over the lease term
Computers and equipment 20 - 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Leasehold improvements 20 - 100%
Motor Vehicle 30%
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An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the leases transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable
to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange difference
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using
the effective interest method.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they are accrued to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
or paternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by an independent trustee.
All contributions to the MPF Scheme are charged
to profit or loss as incurred and reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the MPF Scheme prior to vesting fully in
contributions.

The Group also undertakes mandatory pension
schemes covering retirement benefits for its Taiwan
employees as required by relevant legislations and
regulations in Taiwan.

The employees of the Group's subsidiary which
operate in mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In general, costs are assigned to
individual items on a weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is the price at which inventories
can be sold in the normal course of business after
allowing for the costs of realisation.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. An allowance
for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in the profit
or loss.

Loan receivables are secured corporate loan granted
to customers in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of loan receivables is expected in one year
or less, they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Loan receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Interest receivables are interest derived from secured
corporate loan granted to customers in the ordinary
course of business.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale
("AFS") financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for financial assets other than those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or
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o it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as AFS or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as AFS financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends on
AFS equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount
of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.
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AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity investments are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables (including loan and interest
receivables, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged time deposits and cash and
bank balances) are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
qguoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.
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For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.
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The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.
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Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables,
accrued charges and other payables, loan from
the immediate holding company, loan from the
ultimate holding company and bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liabilities, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.
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The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as
a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises
from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. A contingent asset
is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.
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(b)  (continued)
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity) and.

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is apart, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources
and obligations between related parties.

The Group’s major financial instruments include AFS
financial assets, loan and interest receivables, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, financial
assets at FVTPL, pledged time deposits, cash and bank
balances, trade payables, accrued charges and other
payables, loan from the immediate holding company,
loan from the ultimate holding company and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M H ST

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HIET+HAA

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Categories of financial instruments

4., €I R (&)

STWMIAZEHR
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$°000

R-B—tF R-B—AF
+=A=+-8 hA=+A
BEFT  BEFR

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including B K R GRIE

cash and bank balances) (BRERe RIRITER) 101,408 66,799
AFS financial assets At EeMEE 5,950 5,950
Financial assets at FVTPL BREBRAQAFEEINEZ

TREE 240 204

Financial liabilities EtRasE
Amortised costs B 8 $H A AR 53,215 80,519
Financial risk factors e e E =

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk, which result from both its
operating and investing activities. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no major
hedging activities are undertaken by management.
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The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to United States Dollars, Singapore Dollars and
Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk arises from the
foreign currency denomination of commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group has
no significant direct exposure to foreign currencies
as most of the commercial transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency same as the
functional currency of each entity of the Group.

The Group considers that there is no significant fair
value interest rate risk as the Group does not have
fixed rate borrowings.

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate bank balances
and a variable rate bank borrowing carrying
prevailing interest rates at Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (HIBOR).

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reasonably
possible change in interest rates for bank
balances and the variable rate bank borrowing is
insignificant. No sensitivity analysis is presented.
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The Group's equity investments classified as
financial assets at FVTPL which is measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period and
expose the Group to price risk.

The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on listed equity securities which quoted on the
Stock Exchange. The management will monitor the
price movements and take appropriate actions when
it is required.

No sensitivity analysis is presented as the Group’s
financial results are not significantly affected by
equity investment price risk.

The carrying amounts of loan and interest
receivables and trade and other receivables included
in the consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets. No
other financial assets carry a significant exposure to
credit risk.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regards, the Directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in Hong Kong.
The Group also has concentration of credit risk by
customers of approximately 48% (2016: 40%) and
91% (2016: 41%) of total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the two
largest customers respectively.

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluation of
its customers’ financial condition and requires no
collateral from its customers. The impairment loss in
loan and trade receivables is based upon a review
of the expected collectability of all loan and trade
receivables.

The Group manages its liquidity risk by regularly
monitoring current and expected liquidity
requirements and ensuring sufficient cash and
cash equivalent to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.
In addition, the management of the Group
continuously monitors forecast and actual cash
flows and matches the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables below have been drawn
up based on the contractual maturities of the
undiscounted financial liabilities including interest
that will accrue to those liabilities except when the
Group is entitled and intends to repay the liability
before its maturity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZ_-_E—+F+_-_HA=+—HIE+H{AA

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)
At 31 December 2017

4.

ERMIE (&)

ERMIAZER (&)

() *BELmME (&)
R-E—+tF+=A=+—8

Weighted Total
average contractual Total
effective Within ~ Between 1 Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year and 5 years 5years  cash flow amount
ME¥H CLESIE ]
BERA= 15[ 1525/ BBSE SRELE HREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
E¥Tr  ERTT  BETmT  EBETn BT
Non-derivative financial ¥4 &@MEME
liabilities
Trade payables ERESER = 1,209 = = 1,209 1,209
Accrued charges and other fE:HE B R E i JE R 3
payables B = 43,904 - - 43,904 43,904
Loan from the ultimate ~ &RKERAAER
holding company - 3,602 - - 3,602 3,602
Bank borrowings ROEE 3.38% 4,507 - - 4,507 4,500
53,222 - - 53,222 53,215
At 30 September 2016 RZE—XXFAHA=+H
Weighted Total
average contractual Total
effective Within  Between 1 Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate Tyear and 5 years Syears  cash flow amount
MEF CLIERE £
ERAE V5@ 15255/ BB eRERE LREE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETrT  EETT  E¥TT E¥TT BT
Non-derivative financial ~ JEfTA 4 BAE
liabilities
Trade payables ERESER - 2,622 - - 2,622 2,622
Accrued charges and other fEt & F It £ it B4 3%
payables B - 23,397 - - 23,397 23,397
Bank borrowings RITEE 2.94% 4,505 - - 4,505 4,500
Loan from the immediate E&ZIZRARER
holding company - 50,000 - - 50,000 50,000
80,524 - - 80,524 80,519




Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the
level of fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable.

Fair value at
30 September
2016
RZE—RE
NA=1A
ZAFEE
HK$'000
BEFIT
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at FVTPL  #@EHULTEEYNE
LEREE
- Listed equity securities  — FHRAZE % 204

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in the
current and prior period/year.

Except the above financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis, the Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

AEERHEMEEN SRS PRIZ
ANFEEFE - TRIEHEBERED
FEEFEZHABRBEZIHREE
MEETZEcREEZ A ATFEE
(BRI FTfE B 2 [ EFl B A &
B) UEBEBEATFEEFEME D
ZATFEEESR(BIRESEIR)Z
BHlo

Valuation
Fair value techniques
hierarchy  and key inputs
AVEE
BR MHEEMRIZEBARE
Level 1 Quoted bid prices in active markets
PR ERTEBREANE

RAEE, FERBAERE/FEE
148 2R R B3P 2 I e 5 o

B L@ B HEEARTEEAE
ZEMEBEEN EEZRR RMEH
RGFAMBREPHERAZSREER
TRAEREEAE N FEERES-



The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts (which
include variable rate bank borrowings, loan from the
immediate holding company and loan from the ultimate
holding company), cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves. The Directors review the capital
structure on a continuous basis. As part of this review, the
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, issuance of new share as well as
the addition of new borrowings.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio of borrowings over total assets. The Group aims to

maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

The gearing ratios at the balance sheet dates are as follows:

mEES (Hfat)

Total borrowings (note)

tl

REE

Total assets

Gearing ratios BEAGBEHLX

Note:

Total borrowings include bank borrowings, loan from the
immediate holding company and loan from the ultimate holding
company.

Kﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁxuﬁ@K%EZE
BENETHELE WBEBRE
imﬁﬁ%ﬁ%‘%% SHEA ATER
BARR ANEE 2 BERKEE BT
FEBERFTE-

AEBEZERE %mﬁﬁ(aﬁﬁﬁ
FIRRITEE HEEEBRA E
ﬂﬂwﬂiém>ﬁi&ﬁA”
BYRANAFHEE AEh#EZE (21
E%ﬁ%$&ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%$ﬁiﬁ
ERFTEAEE - EREBERNZ
—% %%%Fﬁﬁ&ﬁ&ﬁﬁm
EAZRB -RBEBEESECERZ A&
B E R TR B BITHRMD &
EEETEEEREARLERE-

AEENEERNEEEZEERR
HERBEEREREER REBH
NBEERBLRERESEKE

REEBZEERBLERINT:

At

30 September
2016
HK$°000
RZE—RF
NA=+H
BT T

54,500

78,448

69.5%

izt :

Z@F“‘“ Fjﬁiﬁ%% E&? R BEE R



Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

The impairment of loan receivables and trade
and other receivables are based on the ongoing
evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of
the outstanding receivables and on management’s
judgement. From time to time, the Group may
experience delays in collection. Where recoverability
of loan receivables and trade and other debtor
balances are called into doubts, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
provision may be required. Certain receivables may
be initially identified as collectable, yet subsequently
become uncollectable and result in a subsequent
write-off of the related receivable to profit or loss.
Changes in the collectability of loan receivables and
trade and other receivables for which provisions are
not made could affect our results of operations.

it R AR TR B B
% REHEREARERTRES
I 2 T TS AT
R H8f -

7 8 B 3 R R A 1 5 R - B AS
W B REEE ELER
AR ERLE R TR REES
AEARRESEREAEREEZE
EEEHEABRE (i RBET®
m

FE U & R N PRI 5 BR R B LAt
W IR 2 BB TH IR IR R R
R Bl e W kIR 2 il Et AT W El A
B MR DM A RIREEEH
BIEETE - AT - AN E 2 WA
REHRTR - EREERNE
W B 5 iR RN E e R IR 2
A] U [B] 14 77 &€ T 8 B EE A
BENBFTRER - RIF RETH
o B TREFAA RE 8N &)
By 1 R A AT U @ - B 1R AT BE
EXW O M B AR N BET
B BAFE MR IR M 8H o R BE A T
Yo Bl 1 3R b 2 IR M E TR K e
W B 5 BR R R E A FE MR IR (R
B ARt g ARE 228
XEBKTE-



The Group estimates the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment to determine the amount of
depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful
lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected
usage, wear and tear of the assets, and technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the market
demands or service output of the assets. The Group
also performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be
valid. The Group tests annually whether the assets
have suffered any impairment. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations
which require the use of assumptions and estimates.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Assessment of net realisable value
is based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group also carries
out review of inventories on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and makes
allowance for slow-moving items.

Management determines whether the acquisition
of subsidiary constituted acquisition of assets and
liabilities or business combination by assessing
if there is business acquired. The three elements
of business are input, process and output.
Management exercises judgements to determine if
these elements were acquired in the Acquisition.
If the acquired subsidiary did not contain these
elements, management will account for the
acquisition of subsidiary as acquisition of assets and
liabilities.

AEBEGEFYE BERREZ
AIERER - IEMEE AR
ZHEXH AEERBARE
R RIBAERR BE 2 AH
ERE BREEE ALRRNE
BEMEFERIEENERE
BT B AR - ARt E AT R F
R-AEBETERBFIELR
af DAFIE B = A 2 B F IR AT
EHZBREEREIDAB R - ANE
EEEREEETAH UEE
BERSHREMBE BEZ
AR E e RASR S ELEFAIIMR
EEREEE (BEARR
fHEt)EE -

FEIRKA KA # B FERE T
ZBERESIR ATRRFETE
RIBRIT R RER MIRITHR
it - ARERZHREH KRS
BREEMmIFE LHRFBHEM®
TR B -

EEEEBNEREFERER
BMEEWENB AR LB
WEEERBBEIERBEH X
BZZHEZRBA LEBRE
K - B EERNKET S EL
HEABERRBAZEFRER
WK BN ERRALRBEEREFE
= AEEESKBHREBARA
RIMFIBEERAE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments based on information
reported to the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM") for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment are as follows:

(i)  Trading of telecommunications and other products

(i) Provision of repair services for telecommunication
products

(iii)y  Investments in financial assets
(iv) Money lending business
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments

for the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 and the
year ended 30 September 2016 is presented as follows:

(a) Segment revenue and results

6.

7 # & F
THAREESES N HERRE
FARRER TR AL ELERE
E([TELBREEBEZEH
B

() BAREBERES

(i) PRHEEIEREERS

(i) EMEEKRE

(iv) MEES
fBHEE—_ZT—+Ft+-_A=+—8
FETRBEAREE-_ZT—X~FNA
ZTHLEFEAREEATREDIZ
EREHNMT

(a) 7 AR K R4

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017

BECR-tETZAt-BLTERA

Provision of

Trading of repair services for
telecommunications  telecommunication

Investments in Money lending

and other products products financial assets business Consolidated
R RUtSRER

Emgs EERE SHEERE HEER &4

HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000

AETR BEFT BEFr BEFr BEFr

Revenue e 18,392 97431 36 167 116,026
Seqment results EIES 896 (10,395) i 9) (9,467)
Interest income HlEMA 136
Finance costs SRR (178)
Unallocated expenses AR (36,344)
Loss before taxation hHEER (45,853)
Taxation fE (39)
Loss for the period rHEEE (45,892)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 &HZE_—_Z—+tF+_A=+—HIE+F@EA

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results (continued)

6. DEER (&)

(a)

DR SR EE ()

For the year ended 30 September 2016
BE-E-ENA=TRLEE

Provision of
Trading of repair services for
telecommunications  telecommunication Investments in

and other products products financial assets Consolidated

}EL\ EEIJHEIJE
ERREMERES BERE PHEERE o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Revenue Wi 8,663 94,711 27 103,401
Segment results PHERE 5,320 (4,113) 32 1,239
Interest income =V ON 16
Finance costs BBEA (129)
Unallocated expenses R (26,425)
Loss before taxation BHATER (25,299)
Taxation A -
Loss for the year AEEER (25,299)

Revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There are no
intersegment sales for the fifteen months ended 31
December 2017 (year ended 30 September 2016:
HK$ Nil).

Segment result represents the result generated
from each segment without allocation of central
administrative costs including directors’ salaries,
staff costs, legal and professional fees and taxation.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

TR ERZMSIBEINE P ELE
WE-HE-_E—+FE+=-H4
=+—BiE+EEARILED
BMZEE (HE_Z—X<FhA
—tHIEFE: BEZ) -

Aﬁiﬁh§%9ﬂ§$2¥
MEI D RO RATEURAS
@%§$%$~§Iﬁ$ﬁﬂi
KRBEXERRBIE I 2B
D EERNFHED BRBE A E
BREBERREESMEE-
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—-Z—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+H@A
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEHR (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) nHEERERE
At 31 December 2017
RZB-t§+ZR=1-8
Provision of
Trading of  repair services for
telecommunications ~ telecommunication Investments in Money lending
and other products products  financial assets business Consolidated
ERRA RUENER )
EmgZ £BRY SHEERE HEXH &4
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
EBTT #8TR #BTR BBTR L o
Segment assets AR 11,628 12471 3374 10,234 31713
Available-for-sale financial assets AL E
SHEE 5,950
Unallocated coporate assets kAR ATEE 389,197
Consolidated total assets BREELE 432,860
Seqment lablities AH8E (618) (8,479) - (20) 9,17)
Unallocated corporate liabilites ~ KAE A7
af (44,650)
Consolidated total liablites RAAEES (53,767)
At 30 September 2016
RZZ-REAAZTH
Trading of Provision of
telecommunications repair services for
and other products  telecommunication Investments in
products financial assets Consolidated
RHENES o
EAREMERES ®ERH TREERE fRa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BRI BRI BETT BRI
Segment assets PHEE 7.128 12,263 3,338 22,729
Available-for-sale financial A tH &
assets SREE 5,950
Unallocated corporate assetsk 2 B2 A A1 & & 49,769
Consolidated total assets &4 B EB5E 78,448
Segment liabilities PHEE (476) (8,465) - (8,941)
Unallocated corporate AP EAFIEE
liabilities (71,578)
Consolidated total liabilities 474 & B2 (80,519)
y . e

=

A
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 HE—-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HIt+A@EA

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEPER (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) (b) "HMEERERE (&)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance HMEEIE DRI R D EL D B 2 [

and allocating resources between segments: MEIRME :

i) All assets are allocated to reportable segments i) Fﬁﬁ BED EHD
other than available-for-sale financial assets, tax IE—H/\Hj’%ﬁrﬂéfé
recoverable and unallocated corporate assets; EMK Bl 138 Rk R 9 Bt A &)
and BERIN: &

i) All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments i) FMEAGBIREE®RS
other than deferred tax liabilities and unallocated BoREEREEERR
corporate liabilities. DEEARIEERIN

(c) Other segment information () HttpBER

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017

BE-R-tFtoAzt-ALtifR

Provision of
Trading of  repair services for Money
telecommunications ~ telecommunication ~ Investments in lending
and other products products financial assets business Unallocated Consolidated
EARt EHEAER
Engi kBRE  oHEERR HExE #138 &2
HKS 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HKS 000
Vi Vi 4 Vi 2 bl a9 ERTr EBTT
Capital expenditure* BRR 1 M ) 01765
Deprecaton i 1 734 14 815
Loss on written off of property,plant and -~ 0% BERAEEE
equipment - 10 " 11
For the year ended 30 September 2016
HE-Z-ENAZTRLER
Provision of
Trading of  repair services for
telecommunications  telecommunication Investments in
and other products products financial assets Unallocated Consolidated
REBAED
EAREBERE S BERE  SREERZ AR fa
HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
E¥TT BETT BT BT E¥TT
Capital expenditure* BARX* 207 350 - 1,274 1,831
Depreciation hE 3 585 - 788 1,396
Loss on written off of property, #$%% - B R E
plant and equipment LER - 10 - . 10

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

plant and equipment and assets from the acquisition

of subsidiary.

BEXFXHYE B RRE
RERWBENERFIGAE
AR -
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(d) Geographical segments

During fifteen months ended 31 December 2017,
91% (year ended 30 September 2016: 100%) of
the Group’s revenue and more than 99% (year
ended 30 September 2016: more than 85%) of the
Group’s total assets were derived from and located
in Hong Kong. Therefore, no geographical segment
for the period/year is presented.

DEER (&)
(d) HES

REBE=_E—+tF+=-A=+—
Bit+REM@EA ANEEI1% (H
E_E—ARFALAZTHLHEF
JE:100% )yl e R AN & B iR
BII% (BEZE-_ZT—~FhA
=+ HIEFE: HiE85% ) KB
BEHRARMRES At
WESHE, FRZHE D EBE

B o
(e) Information about major customers (e) BEEAXEEF2EH
Revenue from customer over 10% of the Group’s WaEEASEBKZRI0%A L
total revenue is as follows: ZEPEIMT
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—tF —T—RE
+ZA=+—-HL hA=+HIE
+EfEA FE
BYEFT BETT
Customer A ZEA 60,865 65,757
REVENUE 7. W
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—tF —E—RE
+ZA=t-HL e === 18
+EEA FE
BYEFT BETT
Sales of goods HEEm 18,392 8,663
Provision of repair services REB#ERS 97,431 94,711
Interest income from loan financing EFRRENSHRA 167 -
Unrealised gain from financial assets FRBRNRTEEIIE2 &/
at fair value through profit or loss, net BEARER s 36 27
116,026 103,401
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZ_-_E—+F+_-_HA=+—HIE+H{AA
8. OTHER REVENUE 8. Hbhzm
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HKS'000 HK$'000
—E—tF —E—RF
+-ZA=+-HL NA=+HLE
+HM@A FE
BYETT BT
Dividend income R EMA 5 5
Interest income Fl2 A 136 16
Sundry income HEBA 1,240 563
1,381 584
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. HMIBAAE
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
e ol of -3 —E-RF
+=ZA=+—-H1L AA=FHIE
+H@A FE
BYETT BT
Interest expenses on bank borrowings ARIFRNEHER 2 RTEEFERX
wholly repayable within five years 178 129

Guoan International Limited Annual Report 2017
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging/

10. BR¥LAIE 1B
BRBABEE NG (5 A) T5E

(crediting): H:
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+F —E-RF
+=ZA=+-R1L AA=+HIE
+E@EA FE
BEFT BETT
Auditors' remuneration: Gl
Auditors of the Company N/NGIE 3 2,076 1,300
Other auditors H i 2 458 307
Cost of trading inventories sold BEEBIRERA 14,051 4,941
Employee benefit expenses (Note 31) EERMZ M (KzE31) 44,248 33,078
Retirement benefit costs (Note 31) RINEFIZE (HE31) 1,763 1,245
Depreciation e 8,225 1,396
Bad debts written off* R RS> 362 63
Loss on written off of property, plantand ~ #$E¥ % BE k& E 2 EE*
equipment* 121 10
Allowance for inventories FEEB 48 58
Reversal of allowance for inventories REOGFERE (20) (72)
Written off of inventories REMH 47 564
Operating lease rental in respect of rental  AHBEEME LLHE
premises 6,709 4,516

* Items included in other operating expenses.

* FARMEELHZIAR -
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HIET+HAA

11. TAXATION 11. Bi1E
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
il of -3 —E—RF
+=ZA=+-HBL AA=1HIE
+EHEA FE
BETTT EE T
Current tax: EEARig
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEMEH
Current year AEE - -
Deferred tax (Note 29) EERB (f1:£29) 39 =
39 -
Note: Bifat -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (year ended 30
September 2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the period/year. No provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made as the Group had no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during both period/year. Taxation arising in other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the period/year are reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

EBFIS B TAR,F ARG 2 ERT %
MiZ16.5% (HE-_ZT—"FNLA=+H
LEFE:165%) 2REFNE - AR AEE
RE/FRERBSELERRTIREF
ML EE L BB NS TRE RN EMENE
HEEEEZBIEDZEEAREERETZ
METE -

AHE FERBERX B BRREE
fEERER 2 RBABRERIT
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fr e MEHEHE

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

TAXATION (continued) 11. i1 (&)
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HKS$'000 % HK$'000 %
“E-tFE ZE-1F
TZA=t-AL NA=TAL
TEfEA ER
BT % BETT %
Loss before taxation RHAER (45,853) (25,299)
Tax at statutory tax rate BATHEHEZHE (7,566) (16.5) (@174) (16.5)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible n R E T EZHEH T ESHER 25
determining taxable profit 7e 1173 26 439 18
Tax effect of income that is not taxable in RETERHRFHPERRMA LR
determining taxable profit Bye (117) (17) () (0.1)
Unrecognised tax losses AEAREEE 5,979 13.0 3,623 143
Unrecognised deductible temporary differences KB MH 2 k%2 1,230 27 115 05
Tax charge and effective tax rate for the period/  KER /EEHERZ R
year ERpx 39 0.1 - =

At 31 December 2017, the Group has cumulative tax
losses of approximately HK$279,515,000 (year ended
30 September 2016: HK$251,962,000) available for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax

assets have not been recognised in respect of

the

estimated tax losses of HK$279,515,000 (year ended 30
September 2016: HK$251,962,000) due to uncertainty of

future profit streams.

NR-E—+&E+-_A=+—H0 K&
B #4) A 5 %279,515,0007T (B = =
T RNENAZTHLEE : B
251,962,0007T ) E5THiIEE B ] 413K
HBBERT RN - AR KEETEF A
% 2@ A -t #8 ph A% 279,515,000
T(BE-_ZE—X"FhLA=Z1+HLHF
€ : ##251,962,0007T) 2 (G 5t T 1B
EEBERECHREEE-



The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the fifteen months ended 31 December
2017 (year ended 30 September 2016: HK$ Nil).

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$45,892,000 (year ended 30
September 2016: HK$25,299,000) and the weighted
average number of 6,713,483,343 ordinary shares for the
fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 (year ended
30 September 2016: 5,617,369,713 (restated)). The
basic and diluted loss per share have been adjusted and
restated for the effect of the rights issue.

The diluted loss per share for the fifteen months ended
31 December 2017 and the year ended 30 September
2016 were the same as basic loss per share as there were
no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during
both periods.

EERTRAREBE_F—+7F
+=A=+ - AL+ EEAZEAR
B (BE-F-<FAAS+ALE
BEEER) -

ERERAEBEIBEAAREE A
JE 1 15 18 40 75 #545,892,0007T (B &
—E-RNFEAA=ZTHILEE B
25,299,0007T) ' MarE B RER K
BEFEBEz2EE_ZT—+&+_-A
=+—HLETREAZEBRINETF
19846,713,483,3430% (B E—ZT—~
FNA=F+HIEFE 5617,369,713
B (&) ) Btk 2 FEMEERA
BREYZERNREEEE-

HREBE—_ZT—tF+-_A=+—H
IE+HEEAR-ZE-—RFAA=+H
L2 3 8 2 1 SOE R AR MU (E
HE BREEERESRENER
EIEK



Cost; KA

At 1 October 2015 R-Z-RFE+A-A
Additions NE

Written off g

At 30 September 2016 and RZZ—~ENA

1 October 2016 STRRZE-R%E
+A-AH
Additions NE
Written off ik
Exchange alignment B 5 A%

At31December 2017  RZE-+t&
t=A=t-H

Accumulated depreciation 23t 17 & &5

and impairment losses:  #18
At 1 October 2015 RZZ-n%+A-H
Charge for the year rEENE
Eliminated on written off i $5 7 %44

At 30 September 2016 and A =F—EA A
1 October 2016 Z+RR-E-RE
+A—-8H
Charge for the period AHENE
Eliminated on written off i 8585 ¥ 3

At 31 December 2017  RZ-Z—-+t&

t=A=t-8
Carrying amounts: REE:
At31December 2017  R-Z-t%+=H
=f=F

At 30 September 2016 R=F-AFAA=T
5!

Leasehold

Buildings improvements

HK$'000
BT
BETT

324,249

324,249

6,514

6,514

HK$'000
BENEEE
BETR

2,872
282
(163)

2,99
3,000
(186)

5805

1,040
705
(163)

1,582
892
(77)

2,397

1,409

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s buildings are situated
in Hong Kong and are held under medium term lease.

Furniture
and fixtures
HK$'000
BRREE
BETT

1,116
89

788

(86)

237

Computers
and
equipment
HK$'000
ERRRR
BT

5436
715

6,151
381
(1,825)

4,708

4,662
487

5,149
520
(1,816)

3,853

1,002

Motor
vehicle
HK$000
"E
BEFT

745

745

50

236

695

Total
HKS$'000
At

BETR

9,424
1,831
(343)

10,912
327,765
(2,100)

1

336,578

6,506
1,39
(333)

7,569
8,225
(1,979

3,343

R-ZZE—+E+=-A=+—H8 K&
BRMEFUREE BIRPHHELE

Ao



Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2017 and 30 September 2016 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

Particulars of fully

Name of subsidiaries operation paid up capital
AR/

WEATAR mEny HRRAZER

Ample Vision Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 Ordinary

Hong Kong

FRERARAA ABREE/EE LRRET

Linktech Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Ordinary
B LakE®IT

World Way Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary
Bk BERESIT

Ever Asia Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary
Bk LaRE% T

Eagle Faith Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary
Bk LRRERIT

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

The financial statements of the above subsidiaries are
coterminous with those of the Group except for Ample
Vision Holdings Limited and Linktech Hong Kong Limited
which have a financial year ended 30 September 2017.
The Group’s financial statements have taken account the
results of Ample Vision Holdings Limited and Linktech
Hong Kong Limited between 1 October 2016 and 31
December 2017.

RZZT—+tF+A=+—HK=F
—NEANA=+H ARQAREZEHE
AR ZHBEDT

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ARAEERE
Aol IZER
At
30 September
2016
%
RIE—nE
AA=TH
%
Indirectly held
35
100 General trading
-®EH
100 Provision of repair services
RELBRE
= General trading
-®EH
100 Money lending business
e
- Property holding
EST]

EERR LRMIARBZHE A
ANEEZEAREREANEE 2/
BRR -EERR RHEGHBER
AIFERRILE -

PR R B R Rk AR B A
IR — B HERERERAA
X Linktech Hong Kong Limited&: 5] -
BRENMBRFEEBHA-_ZT—LF
NA=+H -AEBHBBRKREFT K
FERERBRR T&Linktech Hong
Kong Limited R = — X F+HA—H
—tF+= ﬂ +T—RAE

:I:—?

==
4o



16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e MEHEHE

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 16. I HEESREE
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE—tF RT—RF
+=A=+—H NA=+H
BETF T BT T
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ ATt E SR EE - B1F
comprise of
Unlisted debt securities: FLEMEKES:
Club debentures (note) SES (MaE) 5,950 5,950

Note:

The club debentures are stated at cost less impairment loss at
the end of each reporting period. During the fifteen months
ended 31 December 2017 and the year ended 30 September
2016, the Group identified no impairment loss related to the
club debentures.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The maturity profile of the loan and interest receivables at
the end of the reporting period, analysed by the maturity
date, is as follows:

17.

et

BATEFR S| E HRIAKAHER R EE
‘IR -BE_F—tFt+=-A=1+—H
IFTREARBE—"Z—XR"EFAA=1H
LHFE AEEYERAEEMESEH
ZRBAEEE

ERERKRFE
RE|EHR BRERENEIRE B
Bt B MERIT

At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
RZZB—tF R-FT—XF
+=A=+—H ILEZ=E
BET T BT T

Loan receivables: ERE K :
Within one year —F KN - =
Two to five years MEENF 10,000 -
10,000 =

Interest receivables: JFEWFI B,
Within one year —F KN - =
Two to five years MEERF 167 -
167 =

10,167 =




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M H ST

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 HE—-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HIt+A@EA

17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)  17. BIRER KR F B (&)
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$°000
R-ZEBE—tF RZZT—#F
+=A=+—8H NAA=+H
BT T BT T
Carrying amount analysed for EREREZE D TIREE
reporting purpose:
Current assets mEN & E - -
Non-current assets EMBEE 10,167 -
10,167 =
Note: ff et -
No impairment loss was recognised during the fifteen months HE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HBIE+AE
ended 31 December 2017. A s mERREEE -
The Group’s loan receivable which arises from the money AEERREBRELEERCNEES

lending business of providing corporate loan in Hong Kong is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The loan receivable is secured by collaterals provided by
customer, bears interest and repayable with fixed terms agreed
with customer.

Before approving any loans to new borrowers, the Group
assesses the potential borrower’s credit quality and defines
credit limits individually. The Group has policy for allowance of
doubtful debts which is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment,
including the current creditworthiness, collaterals and the past
collection history of each customer.

EEZREERIAEEAE-

FEM B FRIG AR PR M 2 AR dn (R
SR RAERET P HE 2 BEE MR AE
= o

#Ttt)&ﬁ%ﬂa KA BUER E KA A
B HmBEERRAZEEERRERR
;EGEI‘E%E AEBRERB 2 T4 E %
KRB IR A R E R E X (2158
BEEE ARmRkSEREPZBEKRK
FLER) Bl E R AR B BEUOR -



18.

19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EMHEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

INVENTORIES 18. &
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZE—tF RZT—REF
+=B=+—H HAA=+H
BT T BT T
Finished goods X & 1,211 1,531
Less: Allowance for slow-moving  J& : #8517 & B &
inventories (80) (99)
1,131 1,432

The reversal of write-down of inventories arose due to
the increase in estimated net realisable value of certain
goods as a result of sales of slow-moving inventories

recognised during the period.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

At the end of the reporting periods, the aging analysis
of the trade receivables, based on the invoice date, is as

HRHAEREHERHFE T8
a2 Bt AT 2 EFER N EHEE

19. EWE ZERR

R|BEHR BUE SRR KD

r(REZEH)MT:

follows:

At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
R=Z2E—+tF KT —F
+=A=+—H hAZ=+H
E8ET T B F T
Current BVHA 3,736 460
One to three months overdue BH—ZFZ=MEA 272 325

More than three months, but less & HI =& A A H{B+ —{& A AR
than twelve months overdue 92 59
Over twelve months overdue BEI+ @A L 139,319 139,563
143,419 140,407
Less: Impairment loss recognised  J& : B MR E & 1B (139,305) (139,270)
4,114 1,137




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M H ST

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 HE-—Z—+tF+-_A=+—

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(@) (@)

The credit terms granted to the Group’s customers vary
and are generally the results of negotiations between the

Group and individual customers.

HiE+HEA

19. EWE ZRF (&)
B EE -

RTAKRBEEFPZREHEET
—RASEE@ENEFER
ZRER

(b) Included in the trade receivables balances are debtors b) BZRKRERGEHEBENRSH
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately B i 8 2 B E B 4 72 7% #378,000
HK$378,000 (30 September 2016: HK$677,000) which T(ZE-—RFALA=TH:E¥
are overdue at the reporting date for which the Group has 677,0007T) - HEAR KB R % E

not provided for impairment loss as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are
still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The aging analysis of the trade receivables which are

SHEEHREBERRE RAAE
EEEHALREREGURZE
SRINBER/A TUE - AEEIL
A ZFREBF B ERE TR -

ERRERREZERE SRR Z

(0

overdue but not impaired is as follows: BRI -
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
R=E—+tF R-ZZT—RF
+=A=+—H hAA=+AH
BT T B F T
One to three months overdue mE—Z==1@A 272 325

More than three months, but less than #EHI =188 A EE+ @A UK

twelve months overdue 92 59
Over twelve months overdue B+ @A MU E 14 293
378 677

(@

The movement of the allowance for impairment loss of

EUEZERZRERBE BiEE

trade receivables is as follows: BT
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$°000
RZZ—tF RZIE-—RF
+=ZA=+—H NWA=+AH
BT T BT T
At the beginning of the period/year RER, F 4] 139,270 139,241
Exchange difference X Z5 35 29
At the end of the period/year A4 48 139,305 139,270




19.

20.

21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EREME

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZ—_ZT—+tF+_-_A=+—HItTRHAEA

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables which

19. EREZ RN (4)

ez (&)

(d)

AEBEEREZEKE SRR

are impaired is as follows: BoOET:
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
REZB—tF RZE—RF
+=-B=+—H NA=+H
BT T BT
Over twelve months overdue @A+ —@ANUE 139,305 139,270

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

20. N FIE  BE R HEABEYK

RECEIVABLES |
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZE—tF RZZT—F
+=B=+—H hA=+H
BHETF T BEF T
Prepayments TEfFRIA 1,242 720
Deposits b 5,634 5,047
Other receivables H th & Y FR IR 2,898 2,648
9,774 8,415
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21. ERBRUAQXFEEIERZ
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS THMEE
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
R-ZE—tF RZT—F
+=BA=+—H AA=+H
BT T B F T
Held-for-trading: BHIEER:
— Listed equity securities in Hong  —R&HB 2 ERAEZESH
Kong 240 204

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at fair values. Fair values of the listed investments
are determined with reference to the quoted market bid
prices available on the Stock Exchange.

=y

PEEBEENATERIKRZER
BEDRAFEEIKR EWREZ

RFEEDSEHR

Pl 2 T35 %R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M H ST

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HIET+HAA

22.

23.

PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS

The balances, which were carried at the prevailing market
interest rate at 0.94% p.a. represent deposits pledged to
a bank to secure short-term bank borrowings (Note 26)
granted to the Group, and therefore classified as current
assets. The pledged deposits will be released upon expiry
or termination or upon the settlement of relevant bank
borrowings. At 31 December 2017, all the pledged time

22. BB EHER

BBITTHFNE0.94%5T B2 &8k
EIE R B TIRITUAERR TR
SEEHRITEE (ME26)  H
WD BER/RDEE S ERFRE
REBRITEEE ML LAEEER
KR - R-_T—tF+_-_HA=+—
B A B R ERF RGBS

deposits were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. B
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 23. BeRBITER
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
R-Z—1tF RZE—RF
+t=A=t—-RA HhA=+H
BT T BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITERERS 73,511 52,923
Notes: B it -

(@) Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

(b) The Group’s bank balances are denominated in the
following currencies:

(@) FHRRITZRETIRES AR
TFRA R 238 B R FRERA B -

(b) AEERTHEBATIEEE:

At At

31 December 30 September

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$°000

R=F—+tF RIZE—RF

+=ZHA=+—H hnLA=+H

BT T BT T

Hong Kong Dollars ot 69,298 52,141
Renminbi AR 2,653 26
Singapore Dollars s T 903 -
United States Dollars ETT 572 598
New Taiwan Dollars et 35 111
Euro X 28 50 47
73,511 52,923




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EMHEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities:

23. BERIBITHEER
s : (48)

(0 RETDELEZEBEHK:

Loan from the Loan from the

immediate ultimate
Bank holding holding
borrowings  companies company Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 28)
ERER RALZR
RITEE DEEH NRER &t
BEFT BEFR BEFT BEFT
(Hi##26) (Hi#27) (Hi:#28)
At 1 October 2016 RZE-/~F+A-H 4,500 50,000 - 54,500
Change in financing cash flows: BERERERD:
Increase in bank borrowings RATEEEEM 31,500 - - 31,500
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRTEE (31,500) = T (31,500)
Increase in loan from the immediate ~ ERERAREZEM
holding company = 286,200 - 286,200
Repayment of loan from the immediate  EEEZBRAFEN
holding company - (336,200) - (336,200)
Increase in loan from the ultimate RRER AR EFEM
holding company = = 3,602 3,602
Total changes in financing cash flows ~ BERLFELED = (50,000) 3,602 (46,398)
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t#+=A=t-H 4,500 - 3,602 8,102




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M H ST

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HIET+HAA

24.

25.

TRADE PAYABLES

At the end of the reporting periods, the aging analysis
of the trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as

24. EREZERR

RBEHR BNESERR KR D

fr(REZEH)MT

follows:
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZE—tF RZZT—RHF
+=H=+—H NWA=+H
BT T BT T
Current and within one month BOEA K& — & A K 861 2,611
One to three months overdue BH—FZ=M@EA 337 =
Over three months overdue BmEA=EAMN 1 11
1,209 2,622
ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER 25. BEstE AR Hit B FIE
PAYABLES
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZE—tFE R-ZZT—HF
+=A=+—H NWA=+H
BT T B EEF T
Accrued charges st E A 929 1,840
Other payables (note) H A FE A~ 5RIB (Y aE) 42,975 2 PE57
43,904 23,397

Note:

At 31 December 2017, other payables comprised an
amount due to a former director, Mr. Sy Ethan, Timothy,
of approximately HK$30,372,000 (30 September 2016:
HK$12,022,000). The amount is interest-free, unsecured and

repayable on demand.

it

R-_TE—+HF+-_A=+—8H HitbEH
FRIE B HE B A A 28 B e 5K BE ST AE SRIE LY
75 #30,372,000L (ZE—R"FENLA=T
B :78%12,022,0007T) - :Z&EARE
AR R R BN B R EE -
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27.
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fr e MEHEHE

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

BANK BORROWINGS 26. IRITEE
At At
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
RZZBE—tF RZT—AF
+=—A=+—H ME==FE
BT T BT
Carrying amounts of secured EEEEERARTEEZREE:
bank borrowings repayable:
— Within one year ——F R 4,500 4,500
Note: Bt ez
Bank borrowings of approximately HK$4,500,000 (30 RITIEEL7E%4,500,0007T (ZZT—"F
September 2016: HK$4,500,000) are secured by the pledged NA=+H8:%E%4,500,0007T) LAE 8 F
time deposits, carried interested rates at HIBOR plus 2.9% per VER  WAFEREFREN2.9% 2 F
annum and denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. FIRET B M A BB E -
LOAN FROM THE IMMEDIATE HOLDING 27. EEERAREN
COMPANY
At 30 September 2016, the loan from the immediate RZE—RNFALA=Z+H BEEER
holding company of HK$50,000,000 represented the BB 50,000,000 T B &%
loan from the immediate holding company to a wholly- RNAIRAARRA T ZEN B E R
owned subsidiary of the Company and was unsecured, ZEF ZERREER RERKR
non-interest bearing and repayable within one year. The —FARER-BE_T—tF+=A
loan was fully repaid during the fifteen months ended 31 =+—HLETHEBA ZEXRETE
December 2017. HEE -
LOAN FROM THE ULTIMATE HOLDING 28. RARERATER
COMPANY
At 31 December 2017, the loan from the ultimate RZE—+FE+_A=+—H &&

holding company of approximately HK$3,602,000 (30
September 2016: HK$ Nil) represents the loan from
the ultimate holding company to the Company and is
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable within one
year.

R A R E SR AB%3,602,0007T (=
T— /\EJLH +8: /%’H%fmﬁaﬂ—
REBRARRANRREREZER
%ﬂ#ﬁﬁ RERAR— EW@%&O



The movements in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the statement of financial position and the
movements during the period/year are as follows:

E’\Hﬁxﬁki‘b%ﬁﬁu AN S ILLTRIE

Accelerated tax
Depreciation

HK$
D3R 18
e
B
At 1 October 2015, 30 September 2016 R=-ZT—HEF+HA—H ZF—<ENA
and 1 October 2016 =Et+tAHR=Z—XRFE+HA—H8 -
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of Uz & KB A AU BE & E (H7#33)
subsidiary (Note 33) 513
Charged to the statement of profit or loss ~REIRF AGE B kEME2EKER
and other comprehensive income for the (Ktat11)
period (Note 11) 39
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—+tH+=-A=+—~H
Number of Share
shares capital
HK$°000
g =i [N
BT T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEE®00I T EBK
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 October 2015, 30 September W—_ZE—hAF+A—8-
2016 and 1 October 2016 —E-RFAA=TER
—E—X"F+A—H 5,165,973,933 51,659
Rights issue (note) A% (B at) 2,582,986,966 25,830
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZB—+tH+=-A=+—H 7,748,960,899 77,489
Note: B 2 :

On 11 May 2017, the Company completed the rights issue. A
total number of 2,582,986,966 rights shares were issued on
the basis of one rights share for every two existing shares held
on the record date at the subscription price of HK$0.170 per
rights share with proceeds of approximately HK$439,108,000
(before deducting professional fees and other relevant expenses)
received (the “Rights Issue”).

EA* —+tFERB+—H KRBT
% - & £ 2%172,582,986,966 I% i IRAX 17 ©
BN A SR EMBRRE RDEE—
RX AL R IR (0 2 B2 - LA AR L AR AR (D 76
01702 RBEESFBRELNEBE
439,108,0007T (IR B EEH Kk E 18
MERAT) ([HR]) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(a)

(b)

Staff cost

The total staff cost of the Group during the period/
year (including directors and senior management

& M 35 8 5 P o

BE_ZT—+F+t-_RA=+—HIt+HEAHA

31. EERAXH
(a) BEIRAE
REARER - AEE 2 8 T
ApE (BEEERSREEA

emoluments) is as follows: BZEE)MT:
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+F —E-RE
+=—A=+—-8H NA=+AH
+HMEA IHFE
BEFT BT T
Salaries and allowances e ROERL 43,893 32,812
Staff welfare E B @H 355 266
Contributions to retirement fund ~ EARES K 1,763 1,245
46,011 34,323

Directors and senior management

emoluments

The emoluments of the Directors are as follows:

(b) EBEREREBAEZHE

E=MemT:

Fifteen months ended 31 December 2017
“E-tE+-A=+-HLTEEA

Contributions
Salaries and to retirement

Name of Directors EENZ Fees  allowances fund Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e HeREE  BARSEXR Bt
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive Directors HTEZE
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian BRAALE - 1,725 23 1,748
Mr. SO Haw, Herman BRLE - 1,725 23 1,748
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. DU Jun HE&4 - = - =
Mr. LI Xiang Yu FRBLAE - - - -
Mr. CUI Ming Hong ERELE - - - -
Mr. YANG Li Ming AL D - - - -
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUHHTEE
Mr. WONG Chun Man TRUEE 450 - - 450
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi BB EE 450 - - 450
Mr. NG Man Kung RNHEE 450 - - 450
1,350 3,450 46 4,846




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e M H ST

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HIET+HAA

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 31. EETAXZH (&)
(b) Directors and senior management (b) EERSHREEABZHE
emoluments (continued) (&)

Year ended 30 September 2016
HE_Z-ENA=THLERE

Contributions
Salaries and  to retirement
Name of Directors EEfA Fees  allowances fund Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e FokEE  BREHER Bt
BEFT BEFT BEFT BETT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian (note i) BfRH LA (M) - 732 10 742
Mr. SO Haw, Herman (note i) BELE (Wati) = 813 12 825
Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy (note i) HRERRE S A (Y atiii) - - = =
Mr. SUNG Yee Keung, Ricky (note iv) ~ REB%EE (Hiziv) = 161 8 169
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian (note i) BIRRLE (W) - 81 2 83
Mr. DU Jun (note v) HELE (v - - = -
Mr. LI Xiang Yu (note vi) TRSLE (fivi) - - - -
Mr. CUI Ming Hong (note vi) ERTLE (i) - - - -
Mr. YANG Li Ming (note vi) BAREE (Hatv) - = - -
Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren (note vii) BERAE (Witvi) 134 = = 134
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUHH{TEE
Mr. WONG Chun Man (note vii) THRIEE (Bt tviii) 201 = = 201
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi (note vii) BB L (W i) 201 = = 201
Mr. NG Man Kung (note vii) RCEEAE (B 2vii) 201 = = 201
Mr. Andrew David ROSS (note ix) Andrew David ROSSSE 4
(Histix) 187 - - 187
Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT (note ix) ~ Geoffrey William FAWCETT% &
(Histix) 134 - - 134
Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON (note i) Charles Robert LAWSONZ &
(Hiatix) 134 - - 134
1,192 1,787 32 3,011
Note: K&t -
(i)  Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian was appointed as non- iy BEIRKELEEZERIFFNTE
executive Director with effect from 3 February 2016. E BT R"F_A=-HE
He was re-designated as executive Director with - HEFHETBATES
effect from 11 March 2016. @:;?*/_\ﬁiﬂ +—Bi4E
2% o
(i) Mr. SO Haw, Herman was appointed as executive (i) BAELERZETRATES
Director with effect from 3 February 2016. BE-ZET—XRE-_A=ZHi#4L
2
(i)  Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy resigned as executive (i) MEHRELEBRTRTES:
Director, deputy chairman and chief executive officer BIEFEUARITHER B =T

with effect from 11 March 2016. —"NF=At+—HEBER-
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(b) Directors and senior management
emoluments (continued)

Note: (continued)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Mr. SUNG Yee Keung, Ricky resigned as executive
Director with effect from 11 March 2016.

Mr. DU Jun was appointed as non-executive Director
and as Chairman with effect from 11 March 2016.

Mr. LI Xiang Yu, Mr. CUI Ming Hong and Mr. YANG
Li Ming were appointed as non-executive Directors
with effect from 11 March 2016.

Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren resigned as non-executive
Director with effect from 11 March 2016.

Mr. WONG Chun Man, Mr. TSE Yung Hoi and Mr.
NG Man Kung were appointed as independent non-
executive Directors with effect from 11 March 2016.

Mr. Andrew David ROSS, Mr. Geoffrey William
FAWCETT and Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON resigned
as independent non-executive Directors with effect
from 11 March 2016.

31. EERAZE (&)
(b) ESRESREBAEZHS

7 42

(A8 /

et : (&)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

AERBENTEST B _F
—RNE=ZAt+—HEEXK-

HEALBRZERINTE
EREFE BT -RE=H
T—BRER-

TRBRELE  EREKERS
VREEBZEARIIENTE
F AT A~F=A+—8H
REAERL -

SEMELERIHFENITES
BT A"F=ZA+—HiEE
st

TRXEE HBERERS
Sttt B E (T ABILIEIT
EF A-T-AF=A+—
ARER:

Andrew David ROSSJE 4
Geoffrey William FAWCETT%
4 K Charles Robert LAWSON
EEBTEBIIENTES A
—E-RF=ZAt+—HBHE4LE
R



No directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the fifteen months ended 31
December 2017. Certain Directors have waived
emoluments for the year ended 30 September
2016:

Name of Directors BEHS

Executive Directors HITESE

Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy MEELE

Non-executive Director FHITEE

Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren BEREE

Independent non-executive BUINTEE
Directors

Mr. Andrew David ROSS Andrew David ROSS: 4

Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT  Geoffrey William FAWCETT% 4
Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON Charles Robert LAWSONYE 4

No amounts have been paid by the Group to the
Directors as inducement to join the Group, as
compensation for loss of office or as commitment
fees to existing Directors for entering into new
service contracts with the Group for the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2017 (year ended 30
September 2016: HK$ Nil).

Apart from the aforesaid, no other emoluments
have been paid to the Directors for the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2017 (year ended 30
September 2016: HK$ Nil).

BE-_Z—+F+=-A=+—H
IETHREA  BEEEREXR
EREAAFH -BHE_ZT—X
FNA=1TRHIEFE BTES
EREMNE:

Year ended 30 September 2016

-

Fees
HK$'000
wne
BEFTL

54

80

54

T-RENA=THLEE

Contributions

Salaries and to retirement
allowances fund
HK$'000 HK$000
e RE BREHR
EETFIT BEFIT
8,032 402

BE-_Z—+tF+=-HA=+—H
I+HRER AEEHERES
STHMERFCRIEAMBEAREE 2
e HEBRBALCHE X
NFREAREBTLFREE D
CEEES2ARE (HE2ZZ
—NENAZTHILFEE B

T5)

B EtESN —T—tF+ A
=t+t—HAEt+thEABERE
EXNEMME (BE-F—X
FANA=ZTELEFE:BEEBT
L) ©
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 31. EERAZE (&)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group for the fifteen months ended 31
December 2017 included two (year ended 30
September 2016: two) Directors whose emoluments
are set out in Note 31(b). The aggregate of the
emoluments payable in respect of the three (year
ended 30 September 2016: three) highest paid
individuals who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company, during the period/year
are as follows:

TE&EFMAL
BE_ZT—tH+_-_A=+—H
E+REA  AEELERH
MALRIEME (BE=F—X
FAA=ZTHLEFE -MB)E
= HFMERE3D) - R
BN/ FRENTZ=% (8=
TE-RFAA=ZTHIEFE:
=R)ERSFMAL (LIELRAR
BAEEHERITHRAER) 25
MEEIR

Fifteen

months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—+# —E-RF
+=-A=+-AHL hAZ+ALE
+5EA E3
BETFT BETT
Salaries and allowances e RER 2,573 1,536
Contributions to retirement fund RIS HEK 93 77
2,666 1,613

Number of individual

A8
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
—B—tF —E-RF
+-ZA=t+-HL NA=+ALE
+EEA FE
BETT BEFT
Emolument bands: HEER
HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 B EE 2 811,000,0007T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 ##1,000,0010 %

7 #1,500,0007T




The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 6 March 2015 pursuant to which
employees and directors of the Group and other eligible
persons who have made contribution to the Group
were given opportunity to obtain equity holdings in the
Company.

A summary of the Scheme is set out as follows:

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

Eligible participants include full time employees
and directors of the Company or its subsidiaries;
advisers, consultants, suppliers and agents to the
Company or its subsidiaries and such other persons
who, at the sole determination of the board of
directors, have contributed to the Group.

No share option had been granted under the
Scheme and no share is available for issue under the
Scheme at the date of this annual report.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless
the same is approved by shareholders in general
meeting.

R-Z—RF=HANB TRARH
—IRERAERTE ([5HE))  AEES
BEREFUALBHAKEFEHER
ZEHMAEEBATHESHEIISAK
) B o

el E ST

AR BMENMEARBIR B
BETEESERE ERREY
AEBFTIER R 52B @ -

BEB2EEBEARREM
BRBIZEBMEENES AR
EIEE L= PNCIPd - R il =
B HERRREBEARESEES
BAECHAKEERRERZHE
fis AL o

MRS 3 B I EARRA 8K
BB R - TR AR () IR AR AT BRI
BT

RAEI12ME B BETER T &
2EEERE(BEDTR-
BRI M AT 2 B )
BERTREETZRNDBENE
BB EITRMI%  ERRAE
BERAE EHt/EB BECERERIN -
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—HIt+R{EA

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

The period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

At any time during a period to be notified by the
board of directors, which period not to exceed 10
years commencing on the date on which the option
is accepted and expiring on a day not later than the
last day of the 10-year period.

The minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised
None, unless otherwise determined by the board
of directors and specified in the offer letter of an
option.

The amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option and the period
within which payments or calls must or may
be made or loans for such purposes must be
repaid

HK$1.00 is to be paid as consideration for the grant
of option within 30 days from the date of offer.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the board
of directors but shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share.

The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the adoption date on 6
March 2015.

No share option has been granted under the
Scheme since its adoption.

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

()
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During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017, the
Group acquired a property located in Hong Kong and its
related assets and liabilities for a total cash consideration
of approximately HK$323,898,000. The Acquisition was
completed by way of acquisition of the entire equity
interest in Eagle Faith. Details of the Acquisition were
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 26
January 2017 and 17 February 2017, and circular dated 3
March 2017.

Under HKFRS 3 “Business Combination”, the Acquisition
was accounted for as an acquisition of assets and
liabilities as Eagle Faith being acquired by the Group
does not constitute a business. The Group identified and
recognised the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. The cost of the Acquisition was
allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
acquisition. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill.

Details of the net assets acquired in respect of the
Acquisition are summarised below:

B2 Z—+tF+_-_A=+—81
+RHMEA  AEBKE—BLREB
ZOERBBEERABE RESR
B4 /&% 1323,898,0007T - W B =
BERBEE RS2 2 HRETK -
WIEEEZFERARRIBHA=T
—+F A=+ "BR-_ZE—+F—
A++tBzREURBEA-Z—+
FZAZHZBREE-

REBBUHREEAFEIR [XHE
ol WBEEERA/WEEENE
B AAREEREZEEL THER—
REF - AERBE BRI M ERBLA
MAlZERBEEMDERERE W
BEEKAEDEERLARAIEE
raE EERRNKBEEBHZAE
HRAFEE - ZRXHLBELEHE-

BRAWBEEMEE 2 BEFEFE
gratan T

Property, plant and equipment
Deposits and prepayments
Tax prepayment

Accrued charges

Shareholder loan

Deferred tax liabilities

Assignment of shareholder loan

Net cash outflow arising from the Acquisition:

Total cash consideration paid
Transaction cost

HK$'000
BMTF T
NS ] 324,249
& MTENFRE 92
SEERR AN 80
fEET & H (10)
f% R E (137,627)
FAEFRIAEE (513)
186,271
B RE R 137,627
323,898
WHEEHEEAZRSRL F58:
BENREREBERATE 318,000
RS A 5,898

323,898
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following material related
party transactions during the period:

Balances

Details of the balances with related parties at the ended
of the reporting period are set out in Notes 27 and 28.

Key management personnel compensation

Compensation for key management personnel, including
amount paid to the Directors, as disclosed in Note 31(b),
is as follows:

3. EXREBHEALIRS

RRGeMBmESAREEI K
SERHRNBEULATEZBAEALR
5

g
=]

RBEHREFEEBEA T 260715
A 5E27 5228 ©

i

FEEBEAEMHE

1) T2 EIEA B
T (BREXNTFEEZFB)MT:

Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-tF ZT-RF
+=ZA=+-RAL AA=+RIE
+EEA FE
BEFTT BEFT
Salaries and allowances He Rz 5,940 2,979
Contributions to retirement fund RIS MR 68 32

6,008 3,011
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For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2017 HE—-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HIt+A@EA

35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to three (2016: one to five)
years.

At the end of reporting periods, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

5. MERERE
AEBEEREEA
AEERBEEHERHEEETY
XMz HEFHEHRRERE
B—FEZF (22— K"EF: —FZ
AF)TE-

R|BEHR AEERE T HAHEZ
B 2 N AT HRIH A8 A0 B 1 0 R 2R S A
RIEHERIA 2 AN T

At At

31 December 30 September
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$°000

RZZE—+tHF R-ZT—RF
+=HA=+—H NLA=+H
BT T B FT

Within one year —FR 3,477 3,429
In the second to fifth years, F_FEEFLF (EEMFEBERE
inclusive ") 2,582 1,610

6,059 5,039




Non-current assets IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries [ EPEERNGIE
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE SR EE
Current assets REBEE

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE U B /B B ZR IR
Cash and bank balances B e MIRTTHE %
Current liabilities REBEE

FEETE R KA b FE N 3R

Accrued charges and other

payables ‘
Loan from the ultimate holding XEERARER
company

Amounts due to subsidiaries

JE& A< P /B8 2 B 3R IR

Net current assets/(liabilities)  REIEE (& &) FHE
Total assets less current liabilities 2 & E R R & & &

Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(RE)FH
Equity =

Capital and reserves attributable A 2Q T HEE AEBIHE R
to owners of the Company

Share capital LN
Reserves (note) (M)
Total equity mrER

The statements of financial position of the Company
was approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors of the Company on 15 March 2018 and are
signed on its behalf by:

HUANG Zhen Qian
ER
Executive Director

HITEF

BN IR R R E YRR

SO Haw Herman
R
Executive Director

HITEF

At

30 September
2016
HK$'000
RZZT—RF
B ==FE
BT T

10,749
5,300

16,049

128
46

174

5,593

11,73;
17,328
(17,154)
(1,105)

(1,105)

51,659
(52,764)

(1,105)

RRABFBRRAKRERRREZEN
“E-N\EF=_ATHBHERKET
HoUWHTINEERREER:



Note:

The reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and 30
September 2016 are as follows:

Share

premium

HK$°000

19 = E

BT T
At 1 October 2015 RZZE—R%F

+A—H 648,897

Loss for the year AEEFEEE =
At 30 September 2016 and R Z=—ZT—/XF

1 October 2016 NA=+B R

—E—RF

+A—H 648,897

Loss for the period ANHARE &8 =

Rights Issue H AR 413,278

Share issuance expenses B 17 2172 (12,185)
At 31 December 2017 R=ZB—tH

+F=H=+H—8

At 31 December 2017, the Company has a distributable reserve,
of approximately HK$337,878,000 (2016: HK$ Nil), represented
by share premium exceed accumulated losses of the Company.
Under the Companies Law (2014 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium of the Company is distributable to the
members, subject to a solvency test.

GEE

R=B—tF+-A=+—BR=B—X
FNAZHEARRAZEHENT

Capital
redemption Accumulated
reserve losses
HK$’000 HK$°000

EARED

(A 2itBE
BT T BT T

160 (677,621)
= (24,200)
160 (701,821)

= (10,291)

23

Q
N

A

Total
HK$’000

Gl

BT T

(28,564)
(24,200)

(52,764)
(10,291)
413,278
(12,185)

—E—+E+-_A=+—8"
KRR ZADKFEHBHAEBE

337,878,000 (— T —/NF BT
o) HEBROEREBHAAR R
EBEEIDD RERESHEARE(Z
T —UFEE]) AR AR RER
KEEFEDAIFRED R TFRE-
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 February 2018, Exquisite Honor Holdings
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into the sale and purchase agreement for the
acquisition of Yicko Securities Limited (“Yicko”) for a
consideration of HK$420,000,000, to be satisfied as to
HK$120,000,000 in cash and as to HK$300,000,000 by
the Company issuing convertible bonds with an initial
conversion price at HK$0.26 per conversion share. The
transaction is subject to the approval of shareholders at
an extraordinary general meeting.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Directors on 15 March 2018.

37.

38.

BEHRER

RZZE—A\F=H+=8"Exquisite
Honor Holdings Limited (&2 & 2
2EMBAR KBRS ESFAE
RARl([mml)iluEEH#E R
8 &7 %420,000,0007T ' E B
120,000,000 T 78 LA 3R & X - K 78 #&
300,000,0007C 7B & @A A 7 3174
SEIRE ST RERAR % E0.267T
Z A BRESF N R FHAFR
RIREREFRIARE EHER - F A E

B ©°

BETRGSUHRE

E=ZgeRr T \F=A+thBA#
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFMEHE

For the fifteen
months ended
31 December

2017
HK$’000 For the year ended 30 September
BZ BENA=tALEE
—%¥-tF 2016 2015 2014 2013
T=A=t-HL HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
THER  -®-xf -E-TF -E-mE -E-=f
ERETL TR BT EMTT  BETR
Results £
Revenue g 116,026 103,401 86,695 89,785 110,548
Loss before taxation BT RIER (45,853) (25,299) (23,365) (15,972) (40,105)
Taxation I (39) = 20 (20) 52,993
(Loss)/profit attributable to AR H B ARG
owners of the Company (Eﬂﬁ)//ﬁﬂ (45,892) (25,299) (23,345) (15,992) 12,888
Dividends & & = _ - _ _
At
31 December At 30 September
2017 WhA=+E
HK$'000 2016 2015 2014 2013
RZE—+tF HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
+=B=t-A Z—E—RE —E-HF C—E-QmE "—T—=F
BETT BEFT BEFT BT BEFT
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Property, plant and equipment %1% B Rk & 322,763 3,343 2,918 2,675 3,904
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE
assets 5,950 5,950 5,950 5,950 5,950
Loan and interest receivables JEUE Z & F| & 10,167 - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE (552) = = = =
Net current assets/(liabilities) TEEE,/ (&E)
FE 40,765 (11,364) 14,227 32,006 45,008
379,093 (2,071) 23,095 40,631 54,862
Equity attributable to owners AR A (G2
of the Company 379,093 (2,071) 23,095 40,631 54,862




Guoan International Limited

BZEERERAFA

15th Floor of Tower Il, Admiralty Centre,
No.18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

ERERE 8RBT T L2152
Tel &5 (852) 3585 8700

Fax f8E: (852) 3585 8711

E-mail EIB: info@guoanintl.com
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